Executive Cabinet
Thursday, 20th January 2022, 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley, and YouTube
Agenda
Apologies for absence
1

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 9 December 2021 of Executive
Cabinet

2

Declarations of Any Interests

(Pages 5 - 8)

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest
in respect of matters contained in this agenda.
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do,
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a
decision on the matter.
3

Public Questions
Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a
question(s) on an item(s) on the agenda will have three minutes to put their
question(s) to the respective Executive Member(s). Each member of the
public will be allowed to ask one short supplementary question.

Items of Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources)
(Introduced by Councillor Peter Wilson)
4

Fees and Charges 2022/23

(Pages 9 - 58)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of Finance.
5

Draft Budget 2022/23

(To Follow)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of Finance.
6

Chorley Council Climate Change Strategy; Approval to Consult
To receive and consider the report of the Director of Planning and
Development.

Meeting contact Nina Neisser on 01257 515140 or email nina.neisser@chorley.gov.uk

(Pages 59 - 98)

7

Exclusion of the Public and Press
To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following items of
business on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the
Local Government Act 1972.
By Virtue of Paragraph 1: Information relating to any individual.
Condition:
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
Information is not exempt if it relates to proposed development for which the
local planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992(a).
By Virtue of Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Condition:
Information is not exempt if it is required to be registered underThe Companies Act 1985
The Friendly Societies Act 1974
The Friendly Societies Act 1992
The Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978
The Building Societies Act 1986 (recorded in the public file of any building
society, within the meaning of the Act)
The Charities Act 1993
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of the case,
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
Information is not exempt if it relates to proposed development for which the
local planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992(a).

Items of Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources)
(Introduced by Councillor Peter Wilson)
8

Key Contracts and Partnerships

(Pages 99 118)

To receive and consider the report of the Deputy Chief Executive.
9

Surrender of Existing Lease and Grant of a New Lease - Unit 31-33
Market Walk - Peacocks Stores Limited

(Pages 119 124)

To receive and consider the report of the Director of Commercial Services.

Item of Executive Member (Customer and Streetscene Services)
(Introduced by Councillor Adrian Lowe)
10

Shared Customer Services and Revenues & Benefits Review
To receive and consider the report of the Director of Customer and Digital.

11

Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair

(To Follow)

Gary Hall
Chief Executive
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Executive Cabinet Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair),
Councillor Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Beverley Murray, Peter Gabbott,
Alistair Morwood and Adrian Lowe.

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here and scroll to page 119
To view the procedure for “call-in” of Executive Decisions click here

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 5

Minutes of

Executive Cabinet

Meeting date

Thursday, 9 December 2021

Agenda Item 1

Members present:

Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair), Councillor Peter Wilson
(Vice-Chair)
and
Councillors
Beverley Murray,
Peter Gabbott and Adrian Lowe

Officers:

Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief
Executive), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and Digital)),
Mark Lester
(Director
(Commercial
Services)),
Chris Moister (Director (Governance)), Louise Mattinson
(Director of Finance), Andrew Daniels (Shared Service
Lead – Communications and Visitor Economy),
Laura Barton-Williams (Communications Manager) and
Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member Services Officer)

Apologies:

Councillor Alistair Morwood

Other Members:

Councillor Julia Berry, Mark Clifford, Gordon France,
Danny Gee, Tom Gray, Harold Heaton, Steve Holgate,
June Molyneaux, Jean Sherwood and John Walker

21.EC.66

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 11 November 2021 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 11
November 2021 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive
Leader.
21.EC.67

Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.
21.EC.68

Public Questions

There were no public questions.
21.EC.69

Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 9 December 2021

Agenda Page 6
21.EC.70

Agenda Item 1

Bengal Street Feasibility Update

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director of Commercial
Services which updates Members as to the progress of the potential development of
the Bengal Street site.
Decision:
1. To acknowledge that a commitment to spend the awarded Brownfield
Land Release funds needs to be made by the end of March 2022, therefore
a report will be taken to Council on 25 January 2022 to approve these
funds.
2. To acknowledge that the masterplan options and financial modelling for
the development of the Bengal Street and National Grid sites are being
updated. A report presenting the options will be taken to Informal Cabinet
on 10 January 2022 and Executive Cabinet on 20 January 2022.
Reasons for recommendation(s):
1. To mitigate risk regards to Brownfield Land Release Funding.
2. To progress and bring forward the Bengal Street site for development.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
Not applicable.
Approval for the Contract Award Procedure and Evaluation Criteria for
ICT Hardware and Software

21.EC.71

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential
report of the Director of Customer and Digital which informs Members of the proposed
shared procurement for ICT hardware, software and support and seeks agreement to
the sharing of costs and assessment criteria.
Decision:
1. To approve the contract award procedure for a number of joint
procurements with South Ribble Council outlined at Appendix 1 for
software, hardware and support services.
2. To approve carrying out appropriate tender exercises via the councils’ eprocurement portal (The Chest) or alternatively the use of existing
procurement frameworks such as Crown Commercial Services or similar.
3. To approve the evaluation criteria of 80% cost and 20% quality.
4. To waive the requirement to use the Social Value Portal.
5. That the decision to award is delegated to the Executive Member of
Resources.
Reasons for recommendation(s):
By jointly procuring these contracts it ensures alignment of software and hardware
across both Authorities supporting Shared Services.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
Each Council could procure software independently, but this would make it very
difficult to align software or services in future.

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 9 December 2021

Agenda Page 7

Chair

Executive Cabinet Thursday, 9 December 2021

Date

Agenda Item 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 9

Agenda Item 4

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director (Finance)
(Introduced by Executive
Member (Resources))

Executive Cabinet

20th January 2022

2022/23 Fees and Charges
Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

Yes

Savings or expenditure amounting to greater than
£100,000

Significant impact on 2 or more council
wards

Purpose of the Report
1. This report sets out the current position around fees and charges and proposals for
2022/23.
Recommendations to Cabinet
2. To note the current levels of budgeted fees and charges and the issues specific to these;
3. To approve an increase in the charge for garden waste, from £30 to £32.50;
4. To approve a general increase of 4.9% in the fees for 2022/23; given that the rate of CPI
is currently running at 5.1%, and RPI at 7.1%, the recommended uplift is less than
inflation and is limited to the services listed in Table 3 of Appendix 1.
5. To approve the full list of fees and charges for upload onto the Council website.
Reasons for recommendations
6. To ensure that fees and charges are set at appropriate levels and are publicly available.
Other options considered and rejected
7. None

Agenda Page 10

Agenda Item 4

Executive summary
8. This report sets out the key fees and charges budgets and the income generated from
each.
Corporate priorities
9.

The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable):

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all

✓

A strong local economy

✓

Clean, safe and healthy communities

✓

An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

✓

Background to the report
10. During the pandemic, central government introduced a fees and charges compensation
scheme for local authorities, covering the period from April 2020 to June 2021; this
provided partial compensation for the losses that councils had incurred in the level of fees
and charges earned. In many areas, the level of fees and charges income received in
20/21 and 21/22 has not been representative of that earned in previous years, and there
is still a degree of uncertainty over the level that will be achieved going forward as we
continue through the Covid-19 crisis. However, whilst we have seen indications that the
majority of fees and charges are beginning to return to ‘normal’ levels, there remains some
uncertainty with the emergence and rapid spread of the Omicron variant of the virus.

Fees and Charges Position
11. Appendix 1 details the key fees and charges budgets across a number of categories. It
should be noted however, that the tables are not exhaustive or exclusive but give an
indication of the core fees involved.
12. Table 1 provides details of those charges over which the Council has no control in setting
the amount that can be charged. The largest of these relates to planning application fees.
Whilst the fee is not within local control, it is the volume of the applications which can
significantly impact upon this budget and the income generated, and it can vary
significantly depending on the size of these..
13. Table 2 illustrates the specific fees and charges that generate an income of greater than
£50k. The largest of these relate to the Councils major projects at Market Walk, Strawberry
Fields, Primrose Gardens, Cotswold and other projects (including TVS). Outside of these
charges, the biggest income streams relate to Garden Waste, Car Parking and Building
Control.
14. Table 3 shows the fees and charges that generally have been increased by a given
percentage, or through an inflationary uplift, as opposed to being subject to a full, formal
review. The increases across these can vary, but it is proposed to apply a general increase
to these of 4.9%, which is lower than the current rates of CPI (5.1%) and RPI (7.1%), to

Agenda Page 11

Agenda Item 4

support the residents of the borough during the pandemic; as shown in the table 3 this
change equates to increased revenue of £10k
15. Table 4 illustrates the more significant areas which impact upon the amount of income
generated through changes in charges. An update on these charges is below:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Other Investment Rentals and Leases – these are negotiated on a case by
case basis to ensure maximum benefit. Income has remained largely stable
across these categories as most of it relates to the TVS lease income.
Proposals around potential charges at Astley Hall will be brought forward in a
separate report.
Market options are to be considered separately in the coming months
Street Names and Numbering – these charges are currently under review but
is forecast to be £14k against an existing budget of £20k
Strawberry Fields and Market Walk - changes are negotiated on a case by case
basis. After reductions during the pandemic, the number of tenants has shown
a steady rise as recovery continues.
Primrose Gardens - charges were set upon opening and are due to be reviewed
alongside the new Tatton extra care scheme in the new year.
Garden Waste collection – the proposal is for an increase in the charge from
£30 to £32.50 per annum, which represents an increase of 8.3% and equates
to approximately £65k. This would be the first increase since charges were
introduced back in 2017, representing an average annual increase of less
than 1.4%. The proposed increase in the subscription charge recognises the
increased cost of delivering the service, which has come under pressure not
least over the last year due to factors such as a shortage of HGV drivers. In
comparison to the proposed increase in the subscription charge, inflation has
increased by 15.4% over the same period. Chorley Council’s charges will
remain comparable to those of the other Lancashire Districts, many of which
charge £35 per annum.

Climate change and air quality
16.

The work noted in this report does not impact the climate change and sustainability
targets of the Councils Green Agenda and all environmental considerations are in place.

Equality and diversity
17. N/A
Risk
18. As detailed in the report
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
19. The financial implications are contained within this report.
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
20. None

Agenda Page 12

Agenda Item 4

Background documents
There are no background papers to this report.
Appendices
Appendix 1 – Fees and Charges Tables
Appendix 2 - Detailed Fees and Charges List (to be updated following above approvals)

Report Author:

Email:

Neil Halton

Neil.Halton@chorley.gov.uk

Telephone:

Date:
11/01/22

Agenda Item 4
Agenda Page 13

Appendix 1 Fees and Charges Tables

Table 1:
New Name
Planning Applications
Electoral Register
Electoral Register
Licensing
Land Charges
Parking Fines
Total
Table 2
New Name
Building Control
Car Parking Fees
Cotswold Rent and Service Charges
Strawberry Fields Rent and Service Charges
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Licensing Services
Market Walk Service Charge and Rentals
Market Walk Service Charge and Rentals
Market Walk Service Charge and Rentals
Markets Rental Charges
Garden Waste Collection
Primrose Rent and Service Charges
Streetscene Delivery Teams
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Waste and Recycling Services
Total
Table 3
New Name
Allotments
Community Centres
Community Centres
Community Centres
Community Centres
Community Centres
Lancastrian
Streetscene - Parish Charges
Community Centres
Bulky Waste Collection
Total
Table 4
New Name
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Cemetry Charges
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Car Parking Fees
Cemetry Charges
Cotswold Rent and Service Charges
Strawberry Fields Rent and Service Charges
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Land Charges
Licensing Services
Market Walk Service Charge and Rentals
Market Walk Service Charge and Rentals
Market Walk Service Charge and Rentals
Markets Rental Charges
Other Investment Rentals and Leases
Garden Waste Collection
Primrose Rent and Service Charges
Streetscene - Parish Charges
Waste and Recycling Services
Total

Fees and Charges Over Which The Council has no Control
Total 000's
(550)
(2)
(1)
(90)
(68)
(70)
(781)
Fees and charges generating over £50k
Total 000's
(204)
(445)
(274)
(359)
(88)
(83)
(1,875)
(67)
(120)
(366)
(1,457)
(358)
(363)
(720)
(624)
(96)
(85)
(141)
(7,726)
Fees and Charges which are raised by inflation / a percentage
Total 000's

4.9% Uplift
(8)
(13)
(5)
(9)
(16)
(21)
(15)
(23)
(14)
(61)
(186)

(8)
(14)
(5)
(10)
(17)
(22)
(16)
(24)
(15)
(64)
(196)

Change
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(3)
(10)

Fees and Charges which are raised by a set amount through a separate report/recommendation
Total 000's
(23)
(2)
(5)
(515)
(6)
(189)
(295)
(103)
(1,926)
(67)
(68)
(55)
(366)
(1,457)
(358)
(375)
(15)
(720)
(630)
(6)
(80)
(7,261)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 15

Agenda Item 4

Fees and Charges
2022-23

(To be updated following any approvals)

1
Page | 1

Agenda Page 16

Agenda Item 4

Contents
Planning and Building Control ............................................................................................................................................ 4
Planning – Statutory Fees ............................................................................................................................................... 4
Planning – Non Statutory Fees .................................................................................................................................... 12
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)........................................................................................................................... 12
Building Control .............................................................................................................................................................. 13
Licensing.............................................................................................................................................................................. 18
Club Gaming/Club Machine Permits ........................................................................................................................... 18
Gambling Act .......................................................................................................................................................................... 19
Premises Licenses ......................................................................................................................................................... 22
Licensing Act 2003 ......................................................................................................................................................... 23
Taxi Licensing ................................................................................................................................................................. 24
Other Licensing Fees..................................................................................................................................................... 25
Housing ................................................................................................................................................................................ 27
Pest Control and Animal Welfare ..................................................................................................................................... 28
Pest Control..................................................................................................................................................................... 28
Animal Welfare ............................................................................................................................................................... 28
Community Centres ........................................................................................................................................................... 29
Bereavement Services ............................................................................................................................................................. 30
Cemeteries ...................................................................................................................................................................... 30
Land Charges ..................................................................................................................................................................... 31
Astley Hall and Coach House ........................................................................................................................................... 32
Astley Hall - Tours .......................................................................................................................................................... 32
Astley Hall - Educational Sessions .............................................................................................................................. 32
Astley Hall – Hire ............................................................................................................................................................ 32
Astley Hall – Wedding Ceremonies ............................................................................................................................. 33
Coach House – Activity Space Room ......................................................................................................................... 33
Coach House – Conference Room Hire ..................................................................................................................... 34
Lancastrian Suite ................................................................................................................................................................ 35
Markets ................................................................................................................................................................................ 36
Flat Iron Market............................................................................................................................................................... 36
Food & Craft Street Market ........................................................................................................................................... 36
Covered Market .............................................................................................................................................................. 36
Flea Market ..................................................................................................................................................................... 36
Advertising ....................................................................................................................................................................... 36

2
Page | 2

Agenda Page 17

Agenda Item 4

Other Charges ................................................................................................................................................................ 36
Parking ................................................................................................................................................................................. 37
Off- Street Parking Fees................................................................................................................................................ 37
Off –Street Parking Permits .......................................................................................................................................... 37
Waste and Recycling ......................................................................................................................................................... 38
Other Fees and Charges ................................................................................................................................................... 38
Environmental Health..................................................................................................................................................... 38
RADAR Key..................................................................................................................................................................... 39
Allotments ........................................................................................................................................................................ 39
Council Tax and Business Rates ................................................................................................................................. 39
Pavement Café ............................................................................................................................................................... 39
Geographical Information System (street naming) .................................................................................................... 39
Football Pitches .............................................................................................................................................................. 40
Legal Services ............................................................................................................................................................................ 40
Conveyancing – Freehold Property ............................................................................................................................. 40
Mortgage Administration and Production Fee ............................................................................................................ 40
Landlord and Tenant (Commercial) ............................................................................................................................. 40
Other Legal Agreements ............................................................................................................................................... 41
Statutory Orders (Footpath Diversion) ........................................................................................................................ 41
Miscellaneous Legal Charges ...................................................................................................................................... 41

3

Planning and Building Control
Planning – Statutory Fees
Type of Fee

Unit of Charge

Outline application - sites up to and including 2.5 hectares

per 0.1 Ha

Charge per
Unit

Additional
Notes

£385.00

VAT
N

£9,527
Outline application - sites over 2.5 hectares

N

per 0.1 Ha in excess
of 2.5 Ha

£115.00

Householder application - alterations/extensions to a single dwelling, inc. works
within boundary

per dwelling

£172.00

N

Full application - alterations/extensions to two or more dwellings, inc. works
within boundary

two or more dwelling

£339.00

N

Full application - new dwellings up to and including 50

per dwelling

£385.00

N

£19,049

PLUS

£115.00

per dwelling in excess
of 50 dwellings

Full application-erection of buildings (not dwelling, agricultural, glasshouses, plant
or machinery) gross floor space to be created by the development 0-40 sq.m

£195.00

Maximum Fee
of £250,000

N

N
4

Page | 4

Agenda Item 4

Full application - new dwellings (more than 50)

Agenda Page 18

PLUS

Maximum fee
of £125,000

Type of Fee

Unit of Charge

VAT

N
Per 75 sq. m or part
thereof

£385.00
N
£19,049

Full application - erection of buildings (not dwelling, agricultural, glasshouses,
plant or machinery) - gross floor space to be created by the development > 3,750
sq. m

Maximum Fee
of £250,000
N

per 75 sq. m in excess
of 3,750 sq. m

£115.00
£80.00

Full application - erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural
purposes) - gross floor space to be created by the development 466-540 sq. m

£385.00

Full application - erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural
purposes) - gross floor space to be created by the development 541-4,215 sq. m

£385.00

N
N

N

5

Agenda Item 4

Full application - erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural
purposes) - gross floor space to be created by the development 0-465 sq. m

Agenda Page 19

PLUS

PLUS

Additional
Notes

£385.00

Full application - erection of buildings (not dwelling, agricultural, glasshouses,
plant or machinery) - gross floor space to be created by the development 41-75
sq. m
Full application - erection of buildings (not dwelling, agricultural, glasshouses,
plant or machinery) - gross floor space to be created by the development 753,750 sq. m

Charge per
Unit

Type of Fee

Unit of Charge
Per 75 sq. m or part
thereof in excess of
540 sq. m

Charge per
Unit

VAT

£385.00

£19,049

Full application - erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural
purposes) - gross floor space to be created by the development > 4,215 sq. m

Additional
Notes

Maximum Fee
of £250,000

PLUS
N
£115.00

Full application - erection of glasshouses (on land used for agricultural purposes)
- gross floor space to be created by the development 0-465 sq. m

£80.00

Full application - erection of glasshouses (on land used for agricultural purposes)
- gross floor space to be created by the development > 465 sq. m

£2,150

Full application - erection/alterations/replacement of plant & machinery - site area
not more than 5 Ha

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof

N

£385.00
£19,049

N
Maximum Fee
of £250,000
N

PLUS
Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof in excess of 5

£115.00

6

Agenda Item 4

Full application - erection/alterations/replacement of plant & machinery - site area
more than 5 Ha

N

Agenda Page 20

Per 75 sq. m or part
thereof in excess of
4,215 sq. m

Type of Fee

Unit of Charge

Charge per
Unit

Additional
Notes

VAT

Ha
£195.00

Applications other than building works - car parks, service roads or other
accesses - for existing uses
Applications other than building works - waste (use of land for disposal or refuse
or waste materials or deposit of material remaining after extraction or storage of
minerals - 0 - 15 Ha

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof

N

£195.00
N
£29,112 Maximum Fee
of £65,000

Applications other than building works - waste (use of land for disposal or refuse
or waste materials or deposit of material remaining after extraction or storage of
minerals - > 15 Ha

Applications other than building works - operations connected with exploratory
drilling for oil or natural gas - site area 0 - 7.5 Ha

N
Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof in excess of
15 Ha

£115.00

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof

£423.00

Applications other than building works - operations connected with exploratory
drilling for oil or natural gas - site area > 7.5 Ha

£31,725

N
Maximum Fee
of £65,000

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof in excess of

£126.00

7

Agenda Item 4

N

PLUS

Agenda Page 21

PLUS

Type of Fee

Unit of Charge

Charge per
Unit

Additional
Notes

VAT

7.5 Ha
Applications other than building works - operations other than exploratory drilling
for the winning and working of oil or natural gas - site area 0 - 15 Ha

£214.00

Applications other than building works - operations other than exploratory drilling
for the winning and working of oil or natural gas - site area> 15 Ha

£32,100

N
Maximum Fee
of £65,000

PLUS
N
£115.00

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof

£195.00
£29,112

Applications other than building works - Other operations winning and working of
minerals - site area > 15 Ha

N
Maximum Fee
of £65,000
N

PLUS

Lawful Development Certificate - existing use - in breach of a planning condition

£115.00

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof

£195.00
Same as full

Maximum fee
of £1,690

N
N

8

Agenda Item 4

Applications other than building works - not coming within any of the above
categories - any site area

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof in excess of
15 Ha

Agenda Page 22

Applications other than building works - Other operations winning and working of
minerals - site area 0 - 15 Ha

Per 0.1 Ha or part
thereof in excess of
15 Ha

Type of Fee
Lawful Development Certificate - existing use LDC - lawful not to comply with a
particular condition
Lawful Development Certificate - proposed use
Prior Approval - agricultural and forestry buildings & operations or demolition of
buildings
Prior Approval - telecommunications code systems operators

Unit of Charge

Charge per
Unit
£195.00
½ normal fee
£80.00
£385.00
£80.00

Prior Approval - proposed change of use of agricultural building to a State
Funded School or Registered Nursery

£80.00

Prior Approval - proposed change of use of agricultural building to a flexible use
within shops, financial & professional services, restaurants & cafes, business,
storage or distribution, hotels, or assembly or leisure

£80.00

Prior Approval - proposed change of use of a building from office (use class B1)
use to a use falling within use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse)

£80.00

Prior Approval - proposed change of use of agricultural building to a
dwellinghouse (Class C3), where there are no associated building operations

£80.00

Prior Approval - proposed change of use of a building from a Retail (use Class A1
or A2) use or a mixed retail and residential use to a use falling within use class
C3 (dwellinghouse) where there are no associated building costs

N
N
N
N
N
N

N

£172.00

N
N
N

£80.00
N

9

Agenda Item 4

Prior Approval - proposed change of use of agricultural building to a
dwellinghouse (Class C3), and associated building operations

VAT

Agenda Page 23

Prior Approval - proposed change of use to state funded school or registered
nursery

Additional
Notes

Type of Fee

Unit of Charge

Charge per
Unit

Additional
Notes

VAT

£172.00

Prior Approval - proposed change of use of a building from a Retail (use Class A1
or A2) use or a mixed retail and residential use to a use falling within use class
C3 (dwellinghouse) and associated building costs

N

Reserved matters - application for approval of reserved matters following outline
approval

Full fee or if
already paid
then £385.00

Approval/Variation/Discharge of condition - application for removal or variation of
a condition following grant of planning permission

£195.00
Per request
householder / per
request other

Change of use - of a building to use as one or more separate dwellinghouses, or
other cases < 50 dwellings

Each

£28.00 / £97.00
N
£385.00
£19,049

Change of use - of a building to use as one or more separate dwellinghouses, or
other cases > 50 dwellings

N

PLUS

N
Maximum Fee
of £250,000
N

£115.00

Other changes of use - of a building or land

£385.00

N

Advertising - relating to the business on the premises

£110.00

N

Advertising - advance signs which are not situated on or visible from the site,

£110.00

N

10

Agenda Item 4

Each in excess of 50
dwellings

Agenda Page 24

Approval/Variation/Discharge of condition - request for confirmation that one or
more planning conditions have been complied with

N

Type of Fee

Unit of Charge

Charge per
Unit

Additional
Notes

VAT

directing the public to a business
£385.00

Application for a new planning permission to replace an extant planning
permission - applications in respect of major developments

£575.00

Application for a new planning permission to replace an extant planning
permission - applications in respect of householder developments

£57.00

Application for a new planning permission to replace an extant planning
permission - applications in respect of other developments

£195.00

Application for a non-material amendment following a grant of planning
permission - applications in respect of householder developments

£28.00

Application for a non-material amendment following a grant of planning
permission - applications in respect of other developments

£195.00

N
N
N
N
N
N

Agenda Page 25

Advertising - other advertisements

Agenda Item 4
11

Agenda Page 26

Agenda Item 4

Planning – Non Statutory Fees
Type of Fee
Pre-application charging - small

Unit of Charge Charge per Unit

VAT

Each

£172.80 Inc.

Pre-application charging - medium

Each

£622.08 Inc.

Pre-application charging - major initial meeting

Each

£622.08 Inc.

Pre-application charging - major follow up meeting

Each

£311.04 Inc.

Pre-application charging - large major initial meeting

Each

£1,036.80 Inc.

Pre-application charging - large major follow up meeting

Each

£518.40 Inc.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee

Charge per
Unit

Dwelling houses (excluding apartments)

per sq. m

£65.00

Apartments
Convenience retail (excluding neighbourhood convenience
stores)
Retail warehouse, retail parks, and neighbourhood
convenience stores

per sq. m

No charge

per sq. m

£160.00

per sq. m

£40.00

Community uses

per sq. m

No charge

All other uses

per sq. m

No charge

VAT
N
N
N
N
N
N

12
Page | 12

Building Control
TABLE A - New Housing - up to 300m2 floor area
Number of dwellings

Plan Deposit Charge
Basic
Inc. VAT
Charge

Charge

rge
Basic
Charge

Inc. VAT
l

Basic
Tota
Charge

Inc. VAT

£198.44

£436.42

£523.70

£601.79

£722.15

2

£226.02

£271.22

£604.29

£725.15

£830.31

£996.37

3

£297.67

£357.20

£767.51

£921.01

£1,065.18 £1,278.22

4

£369.34

£443.21

£886.74 £1,064.09

£1,256.08 £1,507.30

5

£446.51

£535.81

£981.67 £1,178.00

£1,428.18 £1,713.82

6

£523.69

£628.43

£1,103.21 £1,323.85

£1,626.90 £1,952.28

7

£545.74

£654.89

£1,178.47 £1,414.16

£1,724.21 £2,069.05

8

£567.80

£681.36

£1,374.09 £1,648.91

£1,941.89 £2,330.27

9

£589.84

£707.81

£1,569.74 £1,883.69

£2,159.58 £2,591.50

10
TABLE A - New Housing - between 301m2 & 700m2 floor
area

£595.36

£714.43

£1,783.90 £2,140.68

£2,379.26 £2,855.11

Single dwelling - floor area to 500m2

£200.00

£240.00

£600.00

£720.00

Single dwelling - floor area between 501m2 & 700m2

£200.00

£240.00

£800.00

£960.00

£800.00

£960.00

£1,000.00 £1,200.00
13

Page | 13

Agenda Item 4

£165.37

Agenda Page 27

1

Plan Deposit Charge
TABLE B - Extensions to dwellings
Extension(s): Internal floor area not exceeding 5m2

Inc. VAT

Basic
Charge

Inc. VAT

Total Charge
Basic
Charge

Inc.
VAT

£342.13

Inc.

Inc.

£285.11 £342.13

£127.66

£153.19

£246.81

£296.17 £374.47 £449.36

£127.66

£153.19

£361.70

£434.04 £489.37 £587.24

£127.66

£153.19

£510.64

£612.77 £638.80 £765.96

£200.00

£240.00

Inc.

Inc.

£200.00 £240.00

£285.11

£342.13

Inc.

Inc.

£285.11 £342.13

£127.66

£153.19

£246.81

£296.17

£374.47 £449.36

Agenda Item 4

£285.11

Agenda Page 28

Extension(s): Internal floor area over 5m2 but not exceeding
40m2
Extension(s): Internal floor area over 40m2 but not
exceeding 60m2
Extension(s): Internal floor area over 60m2 but not
exceeding 80m2
TABLE B - Garages and Carports: Erection of detached
or attached building or an extension to a dwelling
Garage/Carport, or both, floor area not exceeding 40m2 in
total and is intended to be used in common with an existing
building & the conversion of an attached garage into a
habitable room.
Where the garage extension exceeds a floor area of
40m2but does not exceed 60m2
TABLE B - Loft Conversion: Formation of a room in
roof space, including means of access thereto. Fees
for lofts greater then 40m2 are to be based on the cost
of work
Erection of room in roof space with a floor area not
exceeding 40m2

Basic
Charge

Inspection Charge

14

TABLE C - Alterations to dwellings
Installation of replacement windows and doors in a
dwelling where the number of windows/doors does not
exceed 20
Underpinning with a cost not exceeding £30,000

Inspection Charge
Basic Charge

Inc. VAT

Total Charge
Basic
Inc.
Charge
VAT

£85.11

£102.13

Inc.

Inc.

£85.11 £102.13

£212.77

£255.32

Inc.

Inc.

£212.77 £255.32

£212.77

£255.32

Inc.

Inc.

£212.77 £255.32

£85.11

£102.13

Inc.

Inc.

£85.11 £102.13

£170.21

£204.25

Inc.

Inc.

£170.21 £204.25

Agenda Page 29

Controlled electrical work to a single dwelling (not
carried out in conjunction with work being undertaken
that falls within table B)
Renovation of a thermal element i.e. work involving
recovering of a roof, replacement of a floor or renovation
of an external wall to which L1b applies
Formation of a single en-suite bathroom/shower room or
cloakroom within an existing dwelling (excluding
electrical work)

Plan Deposit Charge
Basic
Inc. VAT
Charge

Agenda Item 4
15

Plan Deposit Charge
TABLE D - Extensions and new build - other than to
dwellings
Internal floor area not exceeding 10m2
Internal floor area over 10m2 but not exceeding 40m2
Internal floor area over 40m2 but not exceeding 80m2
Shop fit out not exceeding a value of £50,000

Basic
Charge

Inc. VAT

From £5,001 - £7,000

From £10,001 - £20,000
From £20,001 - £30,000

Basic
Charge

Inc. VAT

Inc.

Inc.

£285.11

£342.13

£127.66

£153.19

£246.81

£296.17

£374.47

£449.36

£127.66

£153.19

£404.26

£485.11

£531.92

£638.30

£212.77

£255.32

Inc.

Inc.

£212.77

£255.32

Based on estimated cost of work

Basic
Charge

Inc. VAT

Inspection Charge

Total Charge

Basic
Charge

Inc. VAT

Basic
Charge

Inc. VAT

£93.62

£112.34

Inc.

Inc.

£93.62

£112.34

£204.26

£245.11

Inc.

Inc.

£204.26

£245.11

£212.77

£255.32

Inc.

Inc.

£212.77

£255.32

£225.00

£270.00

Inc.

Inc.

£225.00

£270.00

£72.50

£87.00

£225.00

£270.00

£297.50

£357.00

£85.00

£102.00

£300.00

£360.00

£385.00

£462.00

Agenda Item 4

From £7,001 - £10,000

Inc. VAT

Agenda Page 30

From £1,001 - £5,000

Basic
Charge

£342.13

Plan Deposit Charge

From £0 - £1,000

Total Charge

£285.11

Replacement windows or doors

TABLE E - Standard charges for all other work not
in tables A, B, C & D

Inspection Charge

16

Plan Deposit Charge

Inspection Charge

Total Charge

From £30,001 - £40,000

£107.50

£129.00

£350.00

£420.00

£457.50

£549.00

From £40,001 - £50,000

£135.00

£162.00

£405.00

£486.00

£540.00

£648.00

From £50,001 - £75,000

£166.00

£199.20

£499.00

£598.80

£665.00

£798.00

From £75,001 - £100,000

£212.50

£255.00

£637.50

£765.00

£850.00 £1,020.00

Greater than £100,000

Charge individually assessed

Agenda Page 31

Agenda Item 4
17

Agenda Page 32

Agenda Item 4

Licensing
Club Gaming/Club Machine Permits
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee

Charge per
Unit

Club Gaming Permits: New Operator

Each

£200.00

Club Gaming Permits: Existing Operator

Each

£100.00

Club Gaming Permits: If have club certificate under LA03

Each

£100.00

Club Machine Permit: New operator

Each

£200.00

Club Machine Permit: Existing operator

Each

£100.00

Club Machine Permits: If have club certificate under LA03
Club Machine Permits: Annual fee for Club Machine/Club Gaming
Permit

Each

£100.00

Each

£50.00

Club Machine Permits: Copying permit

Each

£15.00

Club Machine Permits: Varying permit

Each

£100.00

Gaming Machine Permits: Annual Fee

Each

£50.00

Gaming Machine Permits: Change of name

Each

£25.00

Gaming Machine Permits: Copying permit

Each

£15.00

Gaming Machine Permits: New operator

Each

£150.00

Gaming Machine Permits: Existing operator
Gaming Machine Permits: Notification of intent to use 2 Gaming
Machines
Gaming Machine Permits: Transfer licensed premises Gaming
Machine Permit

Each

£100.00

Each

£25.00

Gaming Machine Permits: Varying Permit

Each

£100.00

VAT
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Each

£50.00
N
N

18
Page | 18

Agenda Page 33

Agenda Item 4

Gambling Act
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee

Charge per
Unit

VAT

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Regional Casino

Each

£15,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Regional Casino

Each

£15,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Regional Casino

Each

£7,500 N

Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Regional Casino

Each

£6,500 N

Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Regional Casino

Each

£6,500 N

Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Regional
Casino

Each

£15,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Large Casino

Each

£10,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Large Casino

Each

£10,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Large Casino

Each

£5,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Large Casino

Each

£2,150 N

Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Large Casino

Each

£2,150 N

Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Large Casino

Each

£10,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Small Casino

Each

£8,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Small Casino

Each

£5,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Small Casino

Each

£4,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Small Casino

Each

£1,800 N

Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Small Casino

Each

£1,800 N

Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Small Casino

Each

£8,000 N

Each

£3,000 N

Each

£2,000 N

Each

£1,350 N

Each

£1,350 N

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Bingo Premises

Each

£3,500 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Bingo Premises

Each

£1,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Bingo Premises

Each

£1,750 N

Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Bingo Premises

Each

£1,200 N

Gambling Act Licence: Converted Casino Premises - Annual
Fee
Gambling Act Licence: Converted Casino Premises - Vary a
Licence
Gambling Act Licence: Converted Casino Premises - Transfer
a Licence
Gambling Act Licence: Converted Casino Premises - Reinstate
a Licence

19
Page | 19

Agenda Page 34
Type of Fee

Agenda Item 4
Unit of
Charge

Charge per
Unit

VAT

Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Bingo Premises

Each

£1,200 N

Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Bingo Premises

Each

£3,500 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Adult Gaming Centre

Each

£1,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Adult Gaming Centre

Each

£1,000 N

Each

£1,200 N

Each

£1,200 N

Each

£2,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Betting Premises (Track)

Each

£2,500 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Betting Premises (Track)

Each

£1,000 N

Each

£1,250 N

Each

£950 N

Each

£950 N

Each

£2,500 N

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Betting Premises (Other)

Each

£3,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Betting Premises (Other)

Each

£600 N

Each

£1,500 N

Each

£1,200 N

Each

£1,200 N

Each

£3,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Family Entertainment

Each

£2,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Family Entertainment

Each

£750 N

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Family Entertainment

Each

£1,000 N

Each

£950 N

Each

£950 N

Each

£2,000 N

Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Adult Gaming
Centre
Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Adult Gaming
Centre
Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Adult Gaming
Centre

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Betting Premises
(Track)
Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Betting Premises
(Track)
Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Betting Premises
(Track)
Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Betting
Premises (Track)

Gambling Act Licence: Vary a Licence - Betting Premises
(Other)
Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Betting Premises
(Other)
Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Betting Premises
(Other)
Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Betting
Premises (Other)

Gambling Act Licence: Transfer a Licence - Family
Entertainment
Gambling Act Licence: Reinstate a Licence - Family
Entertainment
Gambling Act Licence: Provisional Statement - Family
Entertainment

20

Agenda Page 35
Type of Fee

Agenda Item 4
Unit of
Charge

Charge per
Unit

VAT

Gambling Act Licence: Application - Lottery Registration

Each

£40.00 N

Gambling Act Licence: Annual Fee - Lottery Registration

Each

£20.00 N

21

Agenda Page 36

Agenda Item 4

Premises Licenses

Premises Licenses Application - Rateable Value £1 - 4,300

Unit of
Charge
Each

Premises Licenses Application - Rateable Value £4,301 - 33,000

Each

£190.00

VAT
N
N

Premises Licenses Application - Rateable Value £33,001 - 87,000

Each

£315.00

N

Premises Licenses Application - Rateable Value £87,001 - 125,000

Each

£450.00

N

Premises Licenses Application - Rateable Value £125,001+

Each

£635.00

N

Premises Licenses Annual Fee - Rateable Value £1 - 4,300

Each

£70.00

N

Premises Licenses Annual Fee - Rateable Value £4,301 - 33,000

Each

£180.00

N

Premises Licenses Annual Fee - Rateable Value £33,001 - 87,000

Each

£295.00

N

Premises Licenses Annual Fee - Rateable Value £87,001 - 125,000

Each

£320.00

N

Premises Licenses Annual Fee - Rateable Value £125,001+

Each

£350.00

N

Type of Fee

Charge
per Unit
£100.00

22
Page | 22

Agenda Page 37

Agenda Item 4

Licensing Act 2003
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee

Charge per
Unit

VAT
N

Lic Act 2003: Application for the grant or renewal of a personal
licence

Each

£37.00

Lic Act 2003: Temporary event notice

Each

£21.00

Lic Act 2003: Theft, loss, etc. of premises licence or summary
Lic Act 2003: Application for a provisional statement where
premises being built etc.
Lic Act 2003: Mandate for the release of information under the
DPA

Each

£10.50

Each

£315.00

Each

£7.50

Lic Act 2003: Notification of change of name or address
Lic Act 2003: Application to vary licence to specify individual as
premises supervisor

Each

£10.50

Each

£23.00

Lic Act 2003: Application for transfer of premises licence
Lic Act 2003: Interim authority notice following death etc. of
licence holder

Each

£23.00

Each

£23.00

Lic Act 2003: Theft, loss etc. of certificate or summary
Lic Act 2003: Notification of change of name or alteration of rules
of club

Each

£10.50

Each

£10.50

Lic Act 2003: Change of relevant registered address of club

Each

£10.50

Lic Act 2003: Theft, loss etc. of temporary event notice

Each

£10.50

Lic Act 2003: Theft, loss etc. of personal licence

Each

£10.50

Lic Act 2003: Duty to notify change of name or address

Each

£10.50

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

23
Page | 23

Agenda Page 38

Agenda Item 4

Taxi Licensing
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee
Taxi Licensing: Hackney Carriage Vehicles Licence - 6 months
(new)
Taxi Licensing: Hackney Carriage Vehicles Licence - 6 months
(renewal)
Taxi Licensing: Hackney Carriage Vehicles Licence - additional
charge for unmet demand survey

Charge
per Unit

VAT
N

Each

£109.13

Each

£95.86

Each

£220.55

Taxi Licensing: Private Hire Vehicles Licence - 6 months (new)

Each

£105.18

Taxi Licensing: Private Hire Vehicles Licence - 6 months (renewal)

Each

£91.97

Taxi Licensing: Private Operators Licence - Grant & Renewal
Taxi Licensing: Private Hire Driver’s Licence - Grant (includes
knowledge test)

Each

£128.81

Each

£222.74

Taxi Licensing: Private Hire Driver’s Licence - Renewal
Taxi Licensing: Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence - Grant (includes
knowledge test)

Each

£191.08

Each

£214.21

Taxi Licensing: Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence - Renewal
Taxi Licensing: Driver’s Licence - Grant (both badges and
knowledge test)

Each

£182.06

Each

£246.33

Taxi Licensing: Driver’s Licence - Renewal (both badges)
Taxi Licensing: MOT Test
Taxi Licensing: Taxi Testing (not covered by normal MOT Test)
Taxi Licensing: Subsequent Knowledge Tests
Taxi Licensing: Full set of livery
Taxi Licensing: Rear plate- Flexi plate and buttons on renewal
Taxi Licensing: Replacement Rear plate incl. backing plate
Taxi Licensing: Replacement Documents
Taxi Licensing: Variation/Admin Charge

Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each

£214.18
£54.85
£10.25
£28.50
£39.56
£6.08
£10.46
£13.29
£22.80

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
Inc.
Inc.
N
N
N
N
N

24
Page | 24

Agenda Page 39

Agenda Item 4

Other Licensing Fees
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee

Charge per
Unit

Data Access Release

Each

£8.50

Motor Salvage Operators

Each

£112.00

Second Hand Goods Dealers - Shop Premises

Each

£112.00

Second Hand Goods Dealers – Stalls

Each

£41.50

Scrap Metal Dealer - Collectors licence

Each

£130.00

Scrap Metal Dealer - Site licence

Each

£280.00

Sex Entertainment Venue

Each

£8,569.50

Sex Shop Licence

Each

£2,166.00

Small Society Lottery Licence - Grant

Each

£40.00

Small Society Lottery Licence - Renewal

Each

£20.00

Acupuncture, tattooing, ear piercing, microblading

Each

£98.00

Additional Tattooist at a premises

Each

£31.00

Commercial Animal Boarding – up to 10 Kennels

Each *

£78.00

Commercial Animal Boarding – 11 - 25 Kennels

Each *

£78.00

Commercial Animal Boarding – 26 - 50 Kennels

Each *

£78.00

Commercial Animal Boarding – Over 50 Kennels

Each *

£78.00

Home Boarding Licence

Each *

£138.55

Day Care Licence – Domestic

Each *

£138.55

Day Care Licence – Commercial

Each *

£176.57

Breeding of Dogs (excludes vet fees)

Each *

£188.64

Pet Sales Licence

Each *

£158.46

Hiring of Horses (excludes vet fees)

Each *

£99.00

Exhibition of Animals

Each *

£78.00

Street Trading Consent: Grant

Each

VAT
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Resident £440.50

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Non-Resident
£562.00
25
Page | 25

Agenda Page 40
Street Trading Consent: Renewal

Agenda Item 4
Each

Resident £440.50

N

Non-Resident
£562.00
Street Trading: Early surrender of Consent fee

Each

£62.00

N

* License issued for a period of 1, 2 or 3 years dependent on the risk score

26

Agenda Page 41

Agenda Item 4

27

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 42

Housing
Type of Fee

Unit of Charge

Housing Act 2004 Enforcement Charges
Housing Act 2004 Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO)
licence - Up to 5 Occupants
Housing Act 2004 Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO)
licence - 6 to 10 Occupants
Housing Act 2004 Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO)
licence - 11 to 15 Occupants
Housing Act 2004 Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO)
licence - Over 15 Occupants
Housing Immigration Inspections

Each
Each (5 year
licence)
Each (5 year
licence)
Each (5 year
licence)
Each (5 year
licence)
Each

Charge per
Unit
£355.50
£0.00
£452.00
£1,059.11
On
application
£94.20

VAT
N
N
N
N
N
N

28
Page | 27

Agenda Page 43

Agenda Item 4

Pest Control and Animal
Welfare
Pest Control
Type of Fee
Non Residential: First visit
Non Residential: Re-visits (each visit)
Residential: Insect pests
Residential: Insect pests - wasps
Residential: Insect pests - ants, fleas, other
Residential: Insect pests - bedbugs
Residential: Insect pests - cockroaches
Insect Identification
Concession - Income Support
Rats and mice - initial visit
Rats and mice - up to two further visits
Camera survey of drainage system

Unit of Charge

Charge per Unit
£56.50
£31.50
£41.00
£41.00
£41.00
£41.00
£41.00
Free of Charge
£31.50
Free of Charge
Free of Charge
£58.50

VAT
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

Inc.

Animal Welfare
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee

Charge per Unit

VAT
.

Dog Reclamation Fee (excludes kennelling fees)
Stray Dog Fixed Penalty Charge

£80.00 N
£88.57 N

29
Page | 28

Agenda Page 44

Agenda Item 4

Community Centres
Type of Fee

Unit of
Charge

Large
Room or
Café

Small
Room(s)

IT Suit
**

VAT

COMMUNITY GROUPS
Meeting regularly with free and
open access to all for a variety
of activities including
fundraising. C.B.C community
development budgets and
charity.
ACTIVITIES AND
MEMBERSHIP
GROUPS
e.g. bingo, uniformed and
religious groups.
SMALL SCALE
BUSINESSES
e.g. karate, dance classes.
CHILDREN’S PARTIES BOTH ROOMS FOR FEE
Children 16 years of age and
under
SOCIALS, PARTIES &
CELEBRATIONS
Socials, celebrations & party
hire. Party hire where
individual is 17+ years of age

Per
hour

£4.50

£3.45

£10.55

Inc

Per
hour

£5.95

£4.15

£12.70

Inc

Per
hour

£10.40

£6.50

£15.85

Inc

Per
hour

£15.05

£15.05

N/A

Inc

Per
hour

Inc

Per
hour

£36.20
(licenced)
£24.50
(unlicensed)
(a £100
refundable
bond is also
required in
advance)
£7.35

N/A

EXTERNALLY FUNDED
AGENCIES
Providing a service which
benefits the local
community
e.g. clinics, education, meetings.
C.B.C.
BUSINESS RATE

£36.20
(licenced)
£24.50
(unlicensed)
(a £100
refundable
bond is also
required in
advance)
£14.50

£19.05

Inc

c.

c.

c.
Per
hour

£24.50

£12.50

£31.65

Inc

30
Page | 29

Bereavement Services
Cemeteries
Type of Fee

£54.00
£150.00
£27.00
£30.00
£30.00
£30.00
£30.00
£600.00

VAT
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
Inc.

Agenda Item 4

Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each

Charge per
Unit
£900.00
£650.00
No Charge
No Charge
£195.00
£120.00
£1,267.00
£150.00
+100%
+50%
£566.50
£100.00
£150.00
£45.00

Agenda Page 45

Exclusive Right of Burial
Interment Adult
Interment Child under 16
Interment Stillborn or age under one month
Interment in a burial chamber
Interment of cremated remains
Purchase of a burial chamber
Construction of a timber lined grave
Non-resident Charge
Saturday Burial
Family Ashes Plot
Garden of remembrance – plaque
Memorial: Headstones inclusive of first inscription
Memorial: additional inscriptions and refix
Memorial: tablet or vase, including inscription (Only permitted if no headstone to be
erected.)
Garden of Remembrance: cremated remains
Other Cemetery Charges: Grave Marker
Other Cemetery Charges: Certificate of Burial
Other Cemetery Charges: Certificate of Transfer
Other Cemetery Charges: Copy Certificate
Other Cemetery Charges: Search fee
Other Cemetery Charges: Memorial Bench (inclusive of plaque)

Unit of
Charge
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each
Each

30
Page | 30

Agenda Page 46

Agenda Item 4

Land Charges
Type of Fee Unit of Charge Charge per Unit VAT
Standard search - basic LLC1 and CON29R
Each
£152.16
LLC1 only
Each
£23.48 N
CON29 only
Each
£128.68 Inc.
Each additional parcel - LLC1 and CON29R (each)
CON29 optional enquiry - CON290 no's 5-21 (each)
CON29 optional enquiry - CON290 no 22
Additional written enquiries (each)
Each additional parcel of land on LLC1 only

Each
Each

Personal search - online
Personal search - Appointment only

Each
Each

Each
Each

£14.91
£12.85
£33.37
£25.70
£2.06

Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
N
N

£5.00 N
Free Of Charge

31
Page | 31

Agenda Page 47

Agenda Item 4

Astley Hall and Coach House
Astley Hall - Tours
Type of Fee
Guided Tours (minimum 20 people or £80)
Self-Guided Tours (minimum 25 people or £50)
School Tours

Unit of Charge
per head
per head
per head

Charge per Unit
£4.00
£2.00
£3.50

VAT
Inc.
Inc.
E

Astley Hall - Educational Sessions

Type of Fee
Educational Sessions - Tudor Life (min £75)
Educational Sessions - The Great Plague! Health and Hygiene in
the 17th Century (min £60)
Educational Sessions - Serving Stories (min £75)
Educational Sessions - A very Victorian Christmas
Educational Sessions - Homes a long time ago
Educational Sessions - Textiles: Weaving and Dyeing
Educational Sessions - SEN sessions (min £60)

Unit of
Charge
per pupil
per pupil
per pupil
per pupil
per pupil
per pupil
per head

Charge
VAT
per Unit
£3.50 E
£3.50
£3.50
£4.00
£3.00
£3.00
£3.00

E
E
E
E
E
E

Astley Hall – Hire

Type of Fee
Astley Hall Hire - Non-Profit
Astley Hall Hire - Commercial
Astley Hall Hire - Large/late event surcharge after
10pm

Unit of Charge
per hire
per hire
per hour

Charge per
VAT
Unit
£360.00 Inc.
£480.00 Inc.
£110.00 Inc.

32

Agenda Page 48

Astley Hall – Wedding Ceremonies

Type of Fee
Wedding Ceremonies - Dining Room - Mon-Fri (all year
round)
Wedding Ceremonies - Great Hall - Mon-Fri (all year round)
Wedding Ceremonies - Conference Room - Mon-Fri (all year
round)
Wedding Ceremonies - Dining Room - Weekend (low
season)
Wedding Ceremonies - Great Hall - Weekend (low season)
Wedding Ceremonies - Conference Room -Weekend (low
season)
Wedding Ceremonies - Dining Room - Weekend (high
season)
Wedding Ceremonies - Great Hall - Weekend (high season)
Wedding Ceremonies - Conference Room -Weekend (high
season)
Baby Naming Ceremony

Agenda Item 4

Unit of
Charge

Charge per
Unit

VAT

per ceremony
per ceremony

£690.00 Inc.
£875.00 Inc.

per ceremony

£590.00 Inc.

per ceremony
per ceremony

£715.00 Inc.
£895.00 Inc.

per ceremony

£615.00 Inc.

per ceremony
per ceremony

£955.00 Inc.
£1,050.00 Inc.

per ceremony
per ceremony

£855.00 Inc.
£185.00 Inc.

Coach House – Activity Space Room

Type of Fee
Activity Space Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - half day
(Mon - Fri)
Activity Space Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - half day
(weekend)
Activity Space Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - full day
(Mon - Fri)
Activity Space Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - full day
(weekend)
Activity Space Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - evening
(Mon - Fri)
Activity Space Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - evening
(weekend)
Activity Space Room Hire - Non-Profit - half day (Mon - Fri)
Activity Space Room Hire - Non-Profit - half day (weekend)
Activity Space Room Hire - Non-Profit - full day (Mon - Fri)
Activity Space Room Hire - Non-Profit - full day (weekend)
Activity Space Room Hire - Non-Profit - evening (Mon - Fri)
Activity Space Room Hire - Non-Profit - evening (weekend)

Unit of
Charge

Charge
per Unit

VAT

£80.00 Inc.
£100.00 Inc.
£120.00 Inc.
£150.00 Inc.
£100.00 Inc.
£125.00
£40.00
£50.00
£60.00
£75.00
£100.00
£125.00

Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

33

Agenda Page 49

Agenda Item 4

Coach House – Conference Room Hire

Type of Fee
Conference Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - half day
(Mon - Fri)
Conference Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - half day
(weekend)
Conference Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - full day
(Mon - Fri)
Conference Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - full day
(weekend)
Conference Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - evening
(Mon - Fri)
Conference Room Hire - Commercial/Individuals - evening
(weekend)
Conference Room Hire - Non-Profit - half day (Mon - Fri)
Conference Room Hire - Non-Profit - half day (weekend)
Conference Room Hire - Non-Profit - full day (Mon - Fri)
Conference Room Hire - Non-Profit - full day (weekend)
Conference Room Hire - Non-Profit - evening (Mon - Fri)
Conference Room Hire - Non-Profit - evening (weekend)

Unit of
Charge

Charge per
Unit

VAT

£120.00 Inc.
£120.00 Inc.
£180.00 Inc.
£180.00 Inc.
£100.00 Inc.
£125.00
£60.00
£60.00
£120.00
£120.00
£100.00
£125.00

Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

34

Agenda Page 50

Agenda Item 4

Lancastrian Suite
Lancastrian Suite
Daytime (max 4 hours)
Evening to 1am (max 7 hours)
Full Day (max 8 hours)
Additional Hour - Daytime (8.30am to 5pm)
Additional Hour - Evening
Additional Lancastrian Attendants (2 included) - up to 8pm
Additional Lancastrian Attendants (2 included) - 8pm to midnight
Additional Lancastrian Attendants (2 included) - Saturday
Additional Lancastrian Attendants (2 included) - Sunday
Door Person (per hour)
Bar
Set-up Charges
Tea/coffee/cordial (per cup)
Biscuits (per box)
Fresh Orange Juice (per jug)
Water cooler water (per container)

Monday Friday
£150.00
£250.00
£250.00
£37.50
£36.00
£8.00
£11.00
N/A
N/A
£13.50
£65.00
£30.00
£0.50
£7.00
£2.50
£13.00

Weekend Vatable
£200.00
£325.00
£350.00
£50.00
£48.00
N/A
N/A
£12.00
£16.00
£13.50
£65.00
£30.00
£0.50
£7.00
£2.50
£13.00

Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

35

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 51

Markets
Flat Iron Market
Type of Fee
6 x 3 Double Gazebo
3 x 3 Double Gazebo
3 x 3 Half Gazebo
5 x 5 Vehicle Pitch

Unit of Charge
Per Day
Per Day
Per Day
Per Day

Charge per Unit
£30.00
£25.00
£20.00
£35.00

VAT
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

Unit of Charge
Per Day

Charge per Unit
VAT
£20.00 Inc.

Unit of Charge
Per Day
Per Day
Per Day
Per Day

Charge per Unit
£25.00
£22.50
£30.00
£20.00

Unit of Charge
Per Day
Per Day

Charge per Unit
VAT
£9.20 Inc.
£6.80 Inc.

Unit of Charge
Per Month
Per Month
Per Week

Charge per Unit
£3.00
£10.00
£5.40

VAT
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

Unit of Charge
Each
Each
Per m2 per day
Each
Per Letter

Charge per Unit
£5.00
£5.00
£1.15
£260.00
£15.50

VAT
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

Food & Craft Street Market
Type of Fee
3 x 3 Half Gazebo

Covered Market
Type of Fee
Peak Day (Tuesday & Saturday)
Off Peak (Thursday & Friday)
6 x 3 Double Gazebo
3 x 3 Double Gazebo

VAT
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

Flea Market
Type of Fee
Monday (single table)
Monday (additional tables)

Advertising
Type of Fee
A4 Snapshut (individual)
A4 Snapshut (4 frames)
Slatwall Panel

Other Charges
Type of Fee
New Registration Fee
Licence Amendment Fee
Build out Charge
Transfer of licence fee
Administration Fee (per letter)

36

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 52

Parking
Off- Street Parking Fees

Flat Iron
Short Stay
Long Stay

One Hour
Two Hours Three Hours Four Hours
All Day
VAT
Inc.
£0.50
£1.00 2 hours max
2 hours max
2 hours max
Inc.
Free
£1.00
£1.00 3 hours max
3 hours max
Free
Free
Free
£1.00
£3.50 Inc.

Free Parking
Monday to
Friday

Saturday

Sunday & Bank
Holiday

Flat Iron

After 5pm

After 1pm - 2 hour
max

All day but 2 hour
max from 8am - 5pm

Short Stay
Long Stay

After 5pm
After 5pm

After 1pm
After 1pm

All Day
All Day

Off –Street Parking Permits
Type of Fee
Long-Stay Parking Permit
Long-Stay Parking Permit
Long-Stay Parking Permit

Unit of Charge
3 months
6 months
12 months

Charge per Unit
£90.00
£160.00
£300.00

VAT
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.

37

Agenda Page 53

Agenda Item 4

Waste and Recycling
Type of Fee
Civic Amenity Collection (Bulky Waste including waste
electrical items) - up to 5 items
Civic Amenity Collection (Bulky Waste including waste
electrical items) - 1 bulky item
Garden Waste Collection Service
New/Replacement/Additional Bins

Unit of
Charge

Charge per
Unit

VAT

up to 5 items

£40.00 N

1 item
Per bin per
year
Per bin

£20.00 N
£30.00 N
£30.00 N

Other Fees and Charges
Environmental Health
Type of Fee

Unit of
Charge

Charge per
Unit

VAT

38

Agenda Item 4

Agenda Page 54

Each
Each
Each

Copy of EPA Public Register (Commercial)
(a)Private Water Supply Analysis: Basic Parameters
(b)Private Water Supply Analysis: Coliform Parameters Only
Provision of Environmental Information (Commercial) /
Contaminated Land Enquiries
Environmental Permitting Regulations – Advisory Visit

Each

Inc.
£71.50 Inc.
£500.00 N
Recharge lab
costs N

Each
Each

£72.00 N
£203.92 Inc.

RADAR Key
Type of Fee
RADAR scheme key

Unit of
Charge
Each

Charge per
VAT
Unit
£3.00 Inc.

Unit of
Charge
Per year
Per year

Charge per
VAT
Unit
£48.20 N
£24.10 N

Allotments
Type of Fee
Allotment Rental
Allotment Rental (half price concession OAP/Unemployed)

Council Tax and Business Rates
Unit of
Charge

Type of Fee
Council Tax Administration - recovery admin costs for
summons
Council Tax Administration - recovery admin costs for liability
orders
Business Rates Administration - recovery admin costs for
summons
Business Rates Administration - recovery admin costs for
liability orders

Charge per
Unit

VAT

Each

£53.50 N

Each

£39.00 N

Each

£53.50 N

Each

£39.00 N

Pavement Café
Type of Fee
Pavement Cafe Licence (Highway Amenity Licence)
Pavement Cafe Licence renewal/transfer

Unit of
Charge
Each
Each

Charge per Unit

VAT

£306.50 No
£251.50 No

Geographical Information System (street naming)
Type of Fee

Unit of

Charge per Unit

VAT

39

Agenda Page 55

Agenda Item 4

Charge
Naming a new street

Per street

Renaming of street at residents request

Per street

House naming and numbering - house name
added/renamed
House naming and numbering - development of 1-5
plots
House naming and numbering - development of 6-10
plots
House naming and numbering - development of 11-49
plots
House naming and numbering - development of 50+
plots
Changes to development after initial notification

Per house

£200.00 N
£100 + £25 per N
household
£50.00 N

Per plot

£40.00 N

Per plot

£35.00 N

Per plot

£30.00 N

Per plot

£20.00 N

Per plot

£40.00 N

Football Pitches

Type of Fee
Junior Pitch (under 18's)
Adult Pitch at Astley Park with changing facilities &
showers
Adult Pitch at King George's, Jubilee or Westway
without changing
Junior Pitch (under 18's)
Adult Pitch at Astley Park with changing facilities &
showers
Adult Pitch at King George's, Jubilee or Westway
without changing

Unit of
Charge

Charge per Unit

VAT

Per season

£200.00 Inc.

Per season

£330.00 Inc.

Per season

£210.00 Inc.

Per half
season
Per half
season
Per half
season

£90.00 Inc.
£165.00 Inc.
£100.00 Inc.

40

Agenda Page 56

Agenda Item 4

Legal Services
Conveyancing – Freehold Property
Type of Fee
Sale of Land at Buyers Request

Unit of Charge
£102 for first £1,000 of consideration
plus 3% of consideration thereafter
subject to a minimum of £306.

Charge
per Unit
£306

VAT
N

41

Agenda Page 57

Agenda Item 4

Deed of Covenant at third party request

5% of consideration subject to
minimum of £306

£306

N

Deed of Grant at third party request

5% of consideration subject to
minimum of £306

£306

N

Mortgage Administration and Production Fee
Type of Fee
Redemption on early repayment (more
than 12 months unexpired)
Redemption on expiry of term

Unit of Charge

Charge
per Unit

VAT

Each

£306

No

Each

£102

No

Landlord and Tenant (Commercial)
Type of Fee
New Lease – Council as Landlord
Lease Renewal
Rent Review
Licence to Assign, Sub-Let, Carry Out
Alterations, Other Consents
Notices - General
Registration of New Lessees
Agreement to / Deed of Surrender at
Tenant’s request
Deed of Variation
Rectification for shared mistake

Unit of Charge

Charge
per Unit

VAT

10% of annual rental subject to
minimum of £510
Each
Each
Each

£510

N

£255
£102
£306

N
N
N

Each
Each
Each

£102
£102
£306

N
N
N

Each
Each party to bear their own costs

£306
N/A

N
No

Charge
per Unit

VAT

Other Legal Agreements
Type of Fee
Section 106 Agreement – Public Open Space
Section 106 Agreement – Affordable Housing
Section 106 Agreement – Public Open Space
and Affordable Housing
Non-Standard Section 106 Agreement
Supplementary Section 106 Agreement/Deed
of Variation

Unit of Charge

Each
Each
Each

£510
£765
£1,020

N
N
N

Chargeable at Hourly Rate of
£100 per Hour
Each

£100

N

£306

N
42

Agenda Page 58

Agenda Item 4

Statutory Orders
Type of Fee
Footpath Diversion Orders – no public
inquiry
Footpath Diversion Orders which entail
an inquiry

Unit of Charge

Charge
per Unit

VAT

Advertising plus £1,530

No

To be assessed in each case

No

Miscellaneous Legal Charges
Type of Fee
Photocopying of Deeds
Other Copying
Sealing Fee

Unit of Charge
Access Fee
Per Page
Each

Charge
per Unit
£25.50
£0.21
£51

VAT
N
N
N

VAT Key
VAT

Unit of Charge

N
E
Inc.

Non-Business – no VAT charged
Exempt – no VAT charged
The fee includes VAT

43

Agenda Page 59

Agenda Item 6

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director (Planning and
Development)
(Introduced by Executive
Member (Resources))

Executive Cabinet

20 January 2022

Chorley Council Climate Change Strategy; Approval to Consult
Is this report confidential?

No

Is this decision key?

Yes

Savings or expenditure amounting to greater than
£100,000

Significant impact on 2 or more council
wards

Purpose of the Report
1. To seek approval to undertake a process of consultation on the draft Climate Change
Strategy
Recommendations to Cabinet
2. To approve the draft Climate Change Strategy for public consultation.
3. To delegate approval to the Executive Member to adopt the strategy after the consultation
subject to there being no material changes to the strategy.
4. To note that this is an ambitious programme of activity and is likely to require further
investment/resourcing which will be overseen by the Climate Change Working Group and
the Executive Member (Resources).
Reasons for recommendations
5. Climate Change is a priority for the Council, and we must prepare and adopt a Climate
Change Strategy to demonstrate the steps we are taking to move towards zero carbon
and deliver our programme of activity. Without a strategy in place, the Council will not be
able to deliver on the declaration made in 2019 to be net zero by 2030.
Other options considered and rejected
6. To not have a strategy. This was rejected as the evidence for change is compelling and
as a Council, we must demonstrate a commitment to making a difference with a

Agenda Page 60

Agenda Item 6

programme of activity to deliver tangible outcomes including benefits for nature and
reduction in carbon emissions.
Executive summary
7. The Draft Climate Change Strategy sets out the Council’s vision, strategic aims, priorities,
and action plan for climate change for the period 2022-24. It is intentionally a non-technical
document which aims to set out in an accessible format what we want to deliver for Chorley
and how we will go about it.
Corporate priorities
8.

The report relates to the following corporate priorities: (please bold all those applicable):

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all

✓

A strong local economy

Clean, safe, and healthy communities

✓

An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

The Climate Change Strategy
9. The Climate Change Strategy is a non-technical document which sets out the vision (to
achieve net zero by 2030), strategic objectives and priorities for climate change.
10. The vision for the Climate Change Strategy is as follows;
Our goal as a Council is for the borough to be net zero by 2030
11. There are 5 Climate Change Objectives;
•
•
•
•
•

To understand the carbon footprint of both the Council’s activities and the Borough
as a whole, now and in the future, so we can develop robust plans and track our
progress
To dramatically reduce our carbon emissions as a Council and be an ambassador for
change.
Work with our residents, partners, and local businesses to influence behaviour and
deliver local projects to drive down the carbon footprint of our Borough.
To significantly increase the tree coverage across the borough and promote nature
recover
Enable Chorley to be climate resilient and better equipped to cope with changes in
the natural environment including extreme weather events

✓

Agenda Page 61

Agenda Item 6

12. There are nine priorities which are incorporated into the strategy action plan which is at
the back of the document, which includes 40 projects or schemes and is therefore an
ambitious programme of activity.
13. The strategy action has been informed by the Green Task Group of Overview and
Scrutiny, the priorities identified by the Climate Change Working Group plus a series of
workshops held with officers and Elected Members
What the strategy will deliver
14. Key works within the strategy action plan include:
a. The establishment of a long-term Council Asset decarbonisation action plan
b. Community training and engagement through community events, school visits
and online communications
c. Continuing work with organisations such as LCC, NW Energy Hub and
community groups
d. Continue to lobby government to improve the sustainability of policy such as
planning policies
e. Integration of building sustainability policy within council policy
f. The completion of a Chorley and South Ribble Waste Strategy which will include
actions such as single use plastic audits within the Council
g. Annual carbon footprint audits of the Council and the Borough
The Chorley Council Carbon Footprint Report
15. Accompanying the strategy is the Chorley Council Carbon Footprint Report (Appendix
Two). This is a report which is considered best practice and is data which Councils are
expected to make available. It will inform the investment in our assets with a view to
achieving decarbonising our buildings, vehicles, processes and so forth.
Our Consultation Strategy
16. It is anticipated this strategy will attract a lot of media and public attention therefore it is
important we have a plan for the consultation and maximize ways to promote
engagement. We know already following recent events we have held that young people
are very passionate about climate change and are keen to see the strategy and give the
Council constructive feedback.
17. The consultation will be set up using CitizenSpace (online), using a series of multiple
choice and open-ended questions. Citizenspace allows us to download all the feedback
from the survey for analysis to help inform future plans and the CitizenSpace survey link
is easily shared on other digital platforms, with the option to create a paper/pdf version
of the consultation where required.
18. There will be many opportunities for Elected members to get involved in the consultation.
All members will be provided details of how to submit feedback via the online portal,
officers will hold drop in sessions for Elected Members to ask questions and for more
detail on the measures within the strategy, and we will ensure Parish Councils are
involved too with a presentation at Parish Liaison meeting and full details sent to all
Parish Clerks.
19. A range of communications channels will be used where appropriate to reach a range of
audiences, to include:

Agenda Page 62

•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•

Agenda Item 6

Press releases - to local and regional press, plus news section of the Chorley Council
website
Social media on the Chorley Council Facebook, Twitter, and LinkedIn channels
(including sponsored Facebook posts to reach those that do not follow the Chorley
Council social media channels),
Emails to those who have consented to emails via MyAccount
o Those subscribed to receiving consultations (approx. 4000)
o Those subscribed to receiving business news (approx. 3000)
o Those subscribed to receiving information on council news and events (9000)
o Direct emails to parish council and schools for inclusion in their newsletters.
o Inclusion in ‘In the Know’
Website content (Climate Change pages, and news section of Chorley Council
website).
Specific bodies including LCC, NW Energy Hub, Friends of the Earth, NW
Community Energy Group and Churches Against Climate Change
Engagement with schools in the Borough to get the feedback of pupils/a younger
audience.
Potential for drop-in sessions / in person feedback and tie in with other related events
where the views of residents can be captured.
All Elected Members and Parish Councils will be emailed the details and encouraged
to engage.

20. Following Executive Cabinet approval, we will prepare the materials and run a
consultation for 8 weeks early February 2022 to the end of March 2022, to give plenty of
time for engagement & feedback and then take a report to the Executive Member (
Resources /Climate Change) for approval to adopt.
Comparison against grading systems
21. Numerous organisations have compiled scoring criteria for Local authority action plans.
Grading platforms include the Friends of the Earth 50 Point Climate Action Plan for
Councils and the more recent Climate Emergency UK Council Climate League.
22. This strategy has been compared against both grading systems to ensure its robustness
compared to other Councils and against the expectations of the public. All feasible
actions have been added to the programme, factoring in the current workload of specific
teams.
Climate change and air quality
23.

The work noted in this report has taken all efforts to mitigate the effects of climate change
and low air quality. This work encompasses all Council work, actions, and aims towards
the mitigation of climate change and sustainability

24.

As a remediation effort, the strategy has been designed as a digitally friendly document to
limit the requirement for printing

Equality and diversity
25. Overall, the Climate Change Strategy will have a positive effect on sustainability,
reputational and health impact assessments. The equality impact assessment shows that
the strategy has no significant impact on different groups within the community.

Agenda Page 63

Agenda Item 6

Community is a strategic theme of the strategy ensuring residents are involved in
improving their local area and equality of access for all and will therefore have a positive
general impact to this community.
26. The full Integrated Impact Assessment can be found in Appendix three.
Risk
27. The risks associated with this work are concerning the failure to mitigate the impact of
climate change locally, and the challenge to achieve the targets and ambitions of the
Council to deliver on the net zero carbon emissions goal of 2030. Possible delays in
delivering the actions relating to nature recovery and sustainability in the environment
when working with external stakeholders.
Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer
28. The Council provided for a one-off budget of £500k which is monitored via the capital
programme. This is regularly updated and allocated as requests come in. Any resource
requirements beyond this will be sought via additional approvals.
Comments of the Monitoring Officer
29. No comments at this time.
Appendices
Appendix One
the Climate Change Strategy Draft
Appendix Two
the Chorley Council Carbon Footprint Report
Appendix Three the Climate Change Integrated Impact Assessment

Report Author:

Email:

Telephone:

Zoe Whiteside Service Lead
Spatial Planning /Sally
Green Climate Change
Programme Officer

Zoe.whiteside@chorley.gov.uk 01257
515151

Date:
16/12/21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 65

Agenda Item 6

Climate Change Strategy
2022-2024

Our goal as a Council is for the borough to be net zero by 2030

Climate Action for Chorley's Future

chorley.gov.uk/climatechange

Climate Change Strategy / 2022 - 2024

Agenda Page 66

Agenda Item 6

Foreword
As the Portfolio Holder for Climate Change, I am
pleased to present this Climate Change Strategy on
behalf of Chorley Council which will drive forward our
work to deliver net zero for the Borough.

We have also improved the quality of our wetlands
across the Borough with new pond creation, existing
pond improvements and a new reed beds in Astley
Park and Yarrow Meadows to clean up the water which
flows into the River Yarrow. Our woodlands been
proactively managed to eradicate non-native species
and to enhance the age and variety of trees found
within them.
Chorley Council has a proven track record of
working in collaboration with stakeholders, partners,
funding bodies, customers, and parish councils. We
have delivered schemes to provide natural flood
management working with the Environment Agency,
on the river Yarrow to ‘slow the flow’ of river water
providing resilience upstream.

For many years, our teams have delivered projects
and services which have positively contributed to the
mitigation of climate change.
We have improved the biodiversity in our green spaces
with our wildflower meadows, differential mowing
of our verges, the annual management of our large
meadows and the inclusion of bird boxes, bat boxes and
hibernacula and wildlife only spaces.

We have also delivered projects to promote sustainable
energy and we have taken steps to drive up the levels
of recycling we achieve as a borough. In 2019 we
committed to significantly increasing our tree cover and
we embarked on a tree planting programme involving
our communities which will deliver a tree for every
resident of our borough by 2025.
This strategy brings all of this work together and sets
out our ambitious vision, priorities and action plan
which will help us all to achieve a greener, carbon
neutral Chorley which is well placed to meet the needs
of our future generations.
Our comprehensive programme of activity will deliver
real , tangible change such as converting our Council
vehicles to electric powered, decarbonisation of our
buildings, requiring our suppliers to demonstrate
their goods and services are carbon neutral, and also
investing in the improvement of our canal towpaths
and enabling improvements in cycle provision and
bus stops.
There are things we can deliver as a Council and there
are many, we will need your help with, from all walks of
life- our local residents, our partners, our young people,
and our businesses. Climate Change affects us all and
together we can make a contribution and protect our
Chorley for future generations.
Councillor Peter Wilson,
Executive Member Climate Change

2

Agenda Page 67

Agenda
Item 6
chorley.gov.uk/climatechange

The Council’s Vision for The Future

What is Our Carbon Footprint in Chorley?

Our goal as a Council is for the
borough to be net zero by 2030

Carbon footprints have been calculated for both the
Council assets and the borough as a whole (for further
information, a detailed report of the carbon footprint for
the Council and the Borough 2019 has been published
on our website).

In 2019 Chorley Council declared a climate
emergency and set the ambitious target of
becoming net zero by 2030.
This strategy sets out Chorley Councils vision for the
future as a net zero carbon borough and our priorities
and programme for action the period January 2022 to
December 2024 to achieve that goal.
We must all act now to ensure we are able to cope with
and recover from the physical risks that are happening
as a result of changes in the climate. These include
floods, droughts and heatwaves as well as rises in
global temperatures and sea level rise and take steps to
reduce the carbon we produce.
What is Net Zero?
Being a net zero borough means that there will be a flat
balance between the amount of carbon emitted into the
atmosphere and the amount of carbon removed. This
needs a joined up effort from across a number of areas
of our lives and the businesses we have in our borough
and include transport, energy, and waste.
There are also many ways we can use nature to deliver
carbon reductions and also build, our resilience to
changes in the environment, such as natural flood
defences and promoting biodiversity to thrive.

The carbon footprint baseline for Council assets has
been classified as the year 2019. This year was used as
opposed to 2020 because of the significant changes in
behaviour and lifestyle, including reductions in personal
travel, working from home and leisure observed during
2020 because of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Council’s total emissions for 2019 was 1568.03
tCO2e (tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions),
of which the largest contributor was the Council’s use
of mains gas.
The emissions of Chorley Borough are provided by
The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS) and we have detailed data records
which date back to 2005, however the 2020 data has
still been omitted as only provisional data has been
published for that year. The borough’s total emissions
for 2019 was 651900 tCO2e (tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions), of which the largest contributor
was transport.
We will track our progress towards the goal of net zero
by 2030 on an annual basis both as a Council and as
a Borough.
Changes in total emissions and emission type will show
the success of previous decarbonisation efforts and
inform decisions of future actions which must be taken
to meet the Council net zero goal.
Policy Context
The Climate Change Act 2008 introduced the UK’s
first legally binding target to reduce Greenhouse Gas
emissions by 2050 to at least 80% of levels in 1990.
Progress has been made between 1990 and 2017
with the UK reducing its emissions by 42% whilst the
economy has grown by more than two thirds.
Government has recognised the need to go further
and on 27 June 2019, the UK government amended
the Climate Change Act to set a legally binding target
to achieve net zero Greenhouse Gas emissions from
across the UK economy by 2050.
Climate change has dominated the headlines in recent
times and there has been a notable shift in public
concern over the environment, accelerated by the
COP26 hosted by Glasgow in October 2021.

Climate Change Strategy / 2022 - 2024

Agenda Page 68

Agenda Item 6

Links to other strategies and plans
This strategy is aligned with a number of other
strategies and plans not least the Chorley Council
Corporate Strategy which includes the following
objectives;
•
•
•
•
•

Involving residents in improving their local area
Equality of access for all
A strong local economy
Clean, safe, and healthy homes and communities
An ambitious Council that does more to meet the
needs of residents and the local area.

The establishment of impartial committees such as the
United Nations (UN) Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) and the UK’s Committee on Climate
Change (CCC) play a key role in publishing data on
Climate Change and the environmental impacts and the
forecast for carbon budget expenditure and progress
against national and global targets and commitments.

There are also links to others which include the
Chorley Local Plan (2015), the Central Lancashire Core
Strategy (2012), The Chorley Clean Air Strategy (2021),
Emergency Tree Action Plan (2021) and the Douglas
Catchment Partnership Management Plan (2019)

The Council’s Climate Change Programme is
supported nationally through different legislation
and national strategies including:

Radical changes are needed to address climate
change and Chorley Council recognise that we are
facing two unprecedented challenges:

• A Green Future: Our 25 Year Plan to Improve
the Environment
• The Clean Growth Strategy
• The Clean Air Strategy
• The Ten Point Plan for a Green Industrial Revolution
• Net Zero Strategy: Build Back Greener
• The Environment Act 2021

• We must dramatically reduce our carbon emissions
• We must prepare for unavoidable environmental
impacts by building climate resilience into our
systems and services.

Following the UK’s re-emergence from the coronavirus
(covid-19) lockdowns, the government has published new
policies to not only Build Back Better but also to Build
Back Greener for the economy and the environment.
The Environment Act 2021 which received Royal Assent
on the 9th November 2021, introduces new legally binding
targets, many of which will come through secondary
legislation to follow in due course. The
Act is expected to be enforced through within the
next 2-5 years.
Our Climate Change Strategy fully takes account of the
emerging national policy and legal context.
Timescales
This Chorley Climate Change Strategy covers the period
2022-2024. It is accompanied by an action plan which
contains short, medium and longer term actions, and it will
be reviewed bi-annually to ensure the aim of the strategy
and its actions are compliant with changes in national and
international agreements/legislation in this area.

4

Our Strategic Objectives for Climate Change

As a Council we directly emit a small percentage of the
UK’s carbon emissions, but we influence around 40%
of emissions through our roles as community leaders
and via the services we deliver such as planning,
streetscene services and waste collection.
We are working with partners including Lancashire
County Council and local community groups and
businesses to progress the goals and aims of the
Climate Change Programme.

Agenda Page 69

Agenda
Item 6
chorley.gov.uk/climatechange

Strategic Objectives for Climate Change
There are five strategic objectives for climate change which shape our priorities and actions as a Council to deliver our
goal for net zero.
Our five Strategic Objectives for Climate Change provide an overarching framework for our priorities for actions and
guide what we plan to deliver to achieve our goal of a net zero borough. Everything we do falls within a number of
identified themes which are inter linked.

SUMMARY
Climate
Change
Objective 1

To understand the carbon footprint of both the Council’s activities and the Borough as a whole,
now and in the future, so we can develop robust plans and track our progress

Climate
Change
Objective 2

If a delivery mechanism already exists (existing partnership or forum) we will use it, if it doesn’t,
we will create it and support for as long as needed.

Climate
Change
Objective 3

Partnerships that exist and operate on a Chorley and South Ribble footprint will be aligned to
the partnership and actively engaged to share information and intelligence. Where appropriate,
these partnerships will be used to deliver projects, pilots, or specific outputs. Partnerships that
operate on a wider footprint or those that are steered by bodies on a regional footprint (e.g. ICP
under the ICS and the CSP with LCSP) will be represented by a member of the Place Leaders
forum, ensuring that strategic priorities align to wider systems.

Climate
Change
Objective 4

To significantly increase the tree coverage across the borough and promote nature recovery

Climate
Change
Objective 5

Enable Chorley to be climate resilient and better equipped to cope with changes in the natural
environment including extreme weather events

Priorities
The Council has identified 9 nine priorities for
action to tackle climate change and under
each of these, we have a number of projects
or activities which will all help us to deliver our
strategic objectives for climate change and the
end goal to be a net zero borough.
These are cross cutting priorities which include
a programme of activity across a broad range
of themes including the environment, air quality
and nature recovery, transport, waste and
recycling, policy, behaviour change and the
built environment.
The following are an overview of each of
our priorities.

Priority One: Embed climate change in everything the
Councils does from policy to decision making
Chorley Council is committed to understanding and assessing
the impacts for climate change in every decision we take
and that for all of our activities, from development to waste
collection and to our events, we maximise opportunities to
reduce the carbon footprint.
Priority Two: Deliver the decarbonisation of Council owned
assets and improve the sustainability of the Councils fleet
It is crucial that as a community leader and asset manager of
a portfolio of buildings and areas of land across the borough,
we are an exemplar for the greening of our buildings and the
vehicles we use, ensuring our open spaces and natural habitats
are managed to promote nature recovery and biodiversity.

Climate Change Strategy / 2022 - 2024

Agenda Page 70

Priority Three: Develop robust planning policies to
deliver adaption and mitigation
The future of our built environment is shaped by our
planning policies, from the location of future growth to
the design, materials and impact assessments and more
than ever, these policies will enable us to future proof
development creating spaces which enhance nature and
add resilience to the environment.
The National planning policy Framework (NPPF) sets out
the process for decision making and plan-making and we
must comply with this when preparing our local policies
and making decisions about planning applications.
Our current policies are included within the Central
Lancashire Core Strategy (2012) and the Chorley Local
Plan (2015). Work is well underway to produce a new
Central Lancashire Local Plan for 2023-2038. This will
be a single plan for Central Lancashire which will seek to
ensure that all future development is:
• Sustainable
• Benefits nature and our biodiversity
• Carbon neutral (or delivers equivalent in carbon
off-setting)
• Promotes new forms of energy for heating homes
and for transport
• Does not worsen our air quality
• Reduces the need to travel by private car and
promotes active travel and also our health
and wellbeing
• Ensure new developments are well designed and
‘future proofed’
Through the development of this plan, we will have a
suite of policies which help us mitigate and to adapt
to changes which are already happening and cannot
be reversed, such as rising sea levels and changes in
extreme weather events.
Priority Four: Provide safe spaces for walking and
cycling, promote sustainable public transport and
greener private and commercial vehicles.
The largest sector of fossil fuel use and carbon emission
is transport. Vehicles emit gases and substances which
not only have a considerable greenhouse gas effect, but
also impact on human health and wellbeing. These air
pollutants include nitrogen oxides, particulate matter,
and methane.
Sustainable transport options include private motor cars
which are electric or hybrid but also includes sustainable
public transport as well as more active modes such as
cycling or walking. By enabling the change to alternative
modes of transport including enabling and or provision of
infrastructure for electric vehicle charging, buses, trains,
cycling, and walking, coupled with communications to

6

Agenda Item 6

raise awareness and promote behaviour change, we
can relieve traffic congestion and reduce air pollution
and bring added benefits to physical health and
wellbeing.
Priority Five: Work with housing providers,
landlords, developers, and businesses to
promote and encourage energy efficiency and
decarbonisation of buildings.
The heating of private homes produces a significant
amount of carbon emissions and many of our older
properties are inefficient to heat which can impact
on health, particularly in the colder months and
cause fuel poverty. We need to find ways to bring our
existing homes up to a standard of energy efficiency
including delivery of a programme of switching to more
sustainable methods of energy such as air source
heat pumps and away from gas or oil, improving
the insulation of our homes to prevent heat loss and
encouraging higher sustainable standards in new
homes such as BREAAM.
Priority Six: Promote low carbon incentives and
enable access to government funding within the
borough for low carbon technology.
There are increasingly more opportunities for
grant funding for Councils to access to deliver
decarbonisation of homes, business, and transport and
its vital the Council maximises these opportunities in
what is a growing an emerging sector.
Priority Seven: Improve the Borough’s recycling
rates and work with partners, residents, businesses,
schools, community groups and internally to
reduce the volume of landfill waste produced in
the borough
Reducing waste is an important factor with regard
to climate change and sustainability and promoting
the ideals of a circular economy. The advantages
of recycling and reuse compared to producing new
materials and objects from natural resources can
result in lower demand for virgin material meaning
fewer quarries and mines are needed to extract finite
reserves of metal ores, and less energy is needed for
recycling resulting in a reduction of GHG emissions ,
and the amount of waste that is disposed of to landfill
is minimised. Recycling is easy and has a huge impact
in the fight against climate change:
• Recycling 1 tonne of paper saves 19 trees from being
cut down, which helps capture carbon dioxide.
• Aluminium can be recycled repeatedly, saving around
95% of the GHG emissions compared
to extraction.
• Recycling in the UK saves around 18 million tonnes
of CO2 a year, which is the same as almost 17 million
of us switching from petrol to electric cars.

Agenda Page 71
The new Resources and Waste Strategy for England
has set a much higher national recycling rate of 65%
and Chorley Council provides a waste and recycling
collection service to 53,000 households with a recycling
rate of 46.6% and we know we can do better together.
Priority Eight: Influence behaviour change by sharing
knowledge, best practice and promoting debate
around climate change across all groups and ages.
Human behaviour is a significant contributor to climate
change and we need to win the hearts and minds of
our residents, businesses and visitors to encourage
more sustainable ways to go about our daily lives which
cumulatively will drive down carbon emissions and have
the biggest impact.
Effective communication between the Council and our
local residents, businesses and other organisations is
essential to raise awareness and share ideas for change,
which can be big or small.
We have a variety of communication channels available
to us that allow us to reach different audiences with
messages about climate action, which maximise the use
of digital channels and social media platforms as well
as physical events such as youth debate events and
business summits.
Regular communication has provided opportunities to
inform residents of the Council’s ongoing climate change
initiatives, to gather residents’ feedback (e.g. through
public consultations), to get residents involved and share
tips and advice regarding sustainability.
Priority Nine: Deliver investment and improvements
in the natural environment including waterways,
areas of open space, natural habitats to deliver an
increase in the biodiversity of Chorley.
Chorley is a semi-rural Borough with a wealth of habitats
from public parks to waterways and the highest % of
ancient woodland in Lancashire. For future generations
to be able to enjoy the benefits of wild animals and
plants, we must safeguard their habitats and the natural
environment as a whole.
The environment provides for our educational,
recreational, mental wellbeing and cultural activities as
well as material needs such as water, fuel, air, and food.
Nature and biodiversity have become a major focus of
attention for all sectors of our community. As trends in
data show a reduction in the diversity of our species and
loss of natural habitats, rising temperatures and sea
levels, and carbon emission levels, a joined-up effort is
required to take steps now to protect and nurture the
natural environment.
Chorley Council have a track record of working with our
partners such as the Environment Agency, Lancashire
Wildlife Trust, the Canal and River Trust and United
Utilities to deliver environmental projects which include;

Agenda
Item 6
chorley.gov.uk/climatechange

the creation of wildlife areas in many of our parks and
open spaces, the establishment of mini meadows and
wildlife corridors along our roads, the creation of a tree
nursery and the planting of sapling trees, the creation
of ponds for great crested newts and new wetland areas,
achieving green flag status for seven of our parks and
the management of nature reserves across the Borough.
The Council will continue to co-ordinate action to
conserve, manage, and enhance Chorley’s wildlife
and habitats ensuring an increase in the quality of
biodiversity.
Chorley Council works towards creating an inclusive
community between the Council, partners, and the
residents of the borough.
Effects of climate change are expected to impact all of
Chorley’s residents in different aspects of life and it is
essential that the residents are factored into, considered,
and involved during decision making and supported
where necessary. Work with the community regarding
the natural environment is already taking place within
the Council.
Work has included; community education regarding
climate change, support regarding environmental action,
free community use of litter pickers and equipment and
includes free collection of waste, community clean up
days, environmental community grant scheme, providing
grant and support to businesses which are working
towards becoming more sustainable and ecological,
and a school uniform swap scheme.
The residents of Chorley have shown passion and
commitment to helping the mitigation of climate change
and supporting nature and biodiversity of the borough.
With community support and community engagement
it will further the joint goals of a healthy and sustainable
environment and community.
A great example of this collaborative approach to
tackling climate change is the borough’s tree planting
programme. The Council committed to planting 116,875
trees in 2019 and the Local Community have embraced
the opportunity to help grow saplings and participate
in tree giveaways, a programme which is estimated to
capture approximately 38,000 tonnes of CO2 over the
next 100 years as well as promoting biodiversity and
visual benefits to our places.

Climate Change Strategy / 2022 - 2024

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Page 72

Action Plan
This Climate Change Strategy Action Plan sets out
the programme of activity which is a mix of schemes
delivered across the Council with many supported by our
partners and involving engagement with our residents,
schools, voluntary organisations, and businesses.
Chorley Council cannot deliver our vision and priorities
alone and we need the support of our residents,
businesses, partners, and visitors to help us to make
Chorley a greener, cleaner, and more sustainable place to
live, work and relax.

All of our actions fall within our nine identified priorities
and will contribute to at least one of our Strategic
Objectives for climate change and ultimately, our vision
of a net zero borough.
How We Will Monitor our Performance
Performance against the actions within this strategy will
be reported to the Climate Change Working Group each
quarter and also as part of general service performance
reporting to Executive Cabinet and the Executive
Member for Climate Change.

Climate Change Strategy Action Plan 2022/2024

Develop robust planning
policies to deliver
adaption and mitigation of
climate change

Deliver the decarbonisation of Council
owned assets and improve the
sustainability of the Councils fleet

Embed climate change in
everything the Councils
does from policy to
decision making

PRIORITY

8

ACTION

LEAD

COMPLETION
DATE

Refresh the Corporate Integrated Impact Assessment to ensure
robust and transparent evaluation of environmental implications of
new policies, strategies, and services.

Performance and Partnerships,

Dec 2024

Objectives and measures to mitigate climate change where
feasible are included in any new and refreshed Council policy
including the Corporate Strategy

Performance and Partnerships,

Annually

Explore ways to introduce mechanisms to introduce into
the procurement process the evaluation and assessment of
environmental impact

Procurement

Dec 2024

Develop a plan to progress the Councils conversion to electric
vehicles

Streetscene, Spatial Planning
(Carbon Change Team)

Dec 2024

Undertake an annual carbon footprint audit of the Council and
report progress

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)

Annually

Develop and implement a Sustainable Policy for Council Buildings
to ensure that all future development the Council undertakes
meets sustainability and net zero targets and there is a clear
action plan for existing buildings to be decarbonised.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Property Services
Commercial Services

Aug 2022

Complete and evaluate the trial use of HVO fuel to determine its
safety and carbon saving throughout the fleet

Streetscene

Dec 2022

Complete the programme replacement of spent bulbs with energy
efficient LED lights where feasible across all council assets

Property Services

Dec 2024

Develop a roadmap for Council asset retrofitting and
decarbonisation work. Feasibility studies will provide cost
estimations, priorities, and carbon savings

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Property Services

July 2022

Develop & adopt Local Plan policies for climate change including
flood risk & sustainable drainage, biodiversity net gain, green and
blue infrastructure, open space, clean energy, and sustainable
transport.

Spatial Planning (supported by
Carbon Change Team)

Dec 2023

Support local communities in the preparation of Neighbourhood
Plans and incorporation of policies for Climate Change

Spatial Planning (Supported by
Carbon Change Team)

Dec 2024

Agenda Page 73

‘ Influence
behaviour change
by sharing…’

Work with housing providers, landlords,
developers, and businesses to promote
and encourage energy efficiency and
decarbonisation of buildings.

Provide safe spaces for walking and cycling, promote sustainable
public transport and greener private and commercial vehicles.

PRIORITY

Agenda
Item 6
chorley.gov.uk/climatechange

ACTION

LEAD

COMPLETION
DATE

Produce an Infrastructure Delivery Plan which includes new
schemes for cycling, walking and improved public transport.

Spatial Planning

Dec 2023

Deliver the recommendations of the Sustainable Public
Transport Overview and Scrutiny Task Group.

Spatial Planning

Dec 2022

In Partnership with LCC, develop a Highways and Transport
Masterplan for Central Lancashire include a stand- alone
Transport Strategy for Chorley to support delivery of the new
Local Plan.

Spatial Planning

Dec 2022

Produce an Options Paper of sustainable transport initiatives
for the town centre such as electric bike schemes, park and
ride schemes, car sharing schemes and enhancement of public
transport.

Spatial Planning

Aug 2022

Complete an assessment of the feasibility and demand for
electric vehicle charge points within the borough including
community facilities and land owned not only by the Council
and produce a report with options and recommendations.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Property Services
Commercial Services

Dec 2022

Investigate the feasibility and business case for the Council to
establish a service to offer HVO fuel for residents to use in own
private vehicles, include safety, financial, legal and demand.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)

Dec 2022

Investigate the feasibility, benefits, and costs of delivery of
green bus stops.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team and Open Space

June 2022

Working with the Canal and Rivers Trust develop a programme
of potential investment in the network in Chorley.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team and Open Space
Strategy)

Aug 2022

Using existing channels such as the Developers Forum and RP
Framework, cascade and promote new policy such as Future
Homes Standard and showcase best practices of high-quality
low carbon opportunities.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)

Dec 2023

Support residents to make their properties more energy efficient
and affordably warm including practical help and advice.

Communities

Dec 2023

Promote opportunities in access to grant funding for low carbon
heating and energy.

Communities

Dec 2023

Produce an options paper to explore all current and emerging
low carbon technology, potential energy savings, costings,
limitations, and identify options for the Council.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)

Sept 2022

Deliver programme to encourage more cycling including
establishment of Cycling Task Group and Explore Ways to
Improve cycling Infrastructure.

Spatial Planning

Dec 2023

Agenda Page 74

Agenda Item 6

ACTION

LEAD

COMPLETION
DATE

Lobby National Government in writing to ensure low carbon
energy, EV charging points and increased insulation is available
for everyone within housing developments. Enabling powers
through planning and the white paper.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)

Feb 2022

Publish a waste and recycling strategy for Chorley & South Ribble
which will guide the Council towards the UK recycling target of 65%

Waste Services Streetscene

Dec 2022

Increase the number of recycling bins in public spaces based off
demand and ensure it is recycled effectively

Waste Services Streetscene

Apr 2023

Determine the use of single use plastics within Council assets
and level of waste generated to identify potential areas of
improvement to limit plastic waste in the borough

Waste Services Streetscene

Dec 2022

Maximise the reuse and recovery of household bulky waste by
investigating the donation of white goods and furniture

Waste Services Streetscene

Oct 2022

Support community groups to coordinate an annual school uniform
swap schemes for local families

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)

Aug 2022
Aug 2023

Undertake a baseline audit of the current CO2 emissions from our
waste collections fleet and compile recommendations to lower
footprint

Waste Services Streetscene

April 2022

Develop a communications plan to deliver to promote behavioral
change, and climate change work and events including
dissemination of this strategy and the actions within it.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Communications

April 2022

Develop an online ‘Climate Change Handbook’. A collection of
information for sustainability, detailing organisations and local
businesses who can support climate change initiatives, recycling,
and decarbonisation initiatives

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Communications
Business Engagement Team

July 2022

Deliver staff and Elected member training sessions on Climate
Change as part of roll out of this strategy.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)

July 2022

Coordinate and enable community-based and online events,
campaigns, and training opportunities on a number of topics
relating to climate change.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Communications

Dec 2024

Work with partners such as Inspire Youth Zone and the Schools
to develop a programme of learning for young people on climate
change.

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Communications

Dec 2022

Develop a ‘green accreditation’ system for Chorley businesses
including buildings, which will be universal for all businesses within
the borough. This will be a check list system with an overall rating

Spatial Planning (Carbon
Change Team)
Business Engagement Team

Dec 2022

Deliver the Air Quality Strategy Action plan

Communities
Spatial Planning
Planning Services

Dec 2024

Continue to source available space for wildflower and wildlife
corridors and ensure these spaces are optimised and maintained

Spatial Planning (Open
Space Strategy Team)

Dec 2024

Deliver the Emergency Tree Action Plan including the target to
plant 116, 875 165,875 trees by 2025

Spatial Planning (Open
Space Strategy Team)

Dec 2024

Deliver a comprehensive system to record the baseline of canopy
tree cover and spatial distribution of the ongoing planting

Spatial Planning (Open
Space Strategy Team &
Climate Change)

Dec 2022

Identify opportunities to work with partners to enhance our rivers,
improve biodiversity and prevent flood risk

Spatial Planning (Open
Space Strategy Team)

July 2021

Deliver investment and improvements
in the natural environment including
waterways, areas of open space,
natural habitats to deliver an increase
in the biodiversity of Chorley.

Influence behaviour change by sharing
knowledge, best practice and promoting
debate around climate change across all
groups and ages.

Improve the Borough’s recycling
rates and work with partners,
residents, businesses, schools,
community groups and internally
to reduce the volume of landfill
waste produced in the borough

PRIORITY

Promote
low carbon
incentives
and enable
access to
government
funding
within the
borough for
low carbon
technology

Climate Change Strategy / 2022 - 2024

10

Agenda Page 75
Climate Change Glossary
Adaptation Action that helps cope with the effects of
climate change - for example construction of barriers to
protect against rising sea levels, or conversion to crops
capable of surviving high temperatures and drought.
Biodiversity The diversity of life on earth, from genes to
species to ecosystems.
Biofuel A fuel derived from renewable, biological
sources, including crops such as maize and sugar
cane, and some forms of waste
Carbon capture and storage the collection and
transport of concentrated carbon dioxide gas from
large emission sources, such as power plants. The
gases are then injected into deep underground
reservoirs. Carbon capture is sometimes referred to as
geological sequestration.
Carbon dioxide (CO2) Carbon dioxide is a gas in the
Earth’s atmosphere which occurs naturally and is also
a by-product of human activities such as burning fossil
fuels. It is the principal greenhouse gas produced by
human activity.
Carbon dioxide (CO2) equivalent Six greenhouse
gases are limited by the Kyoto Protocol and each has a
different global warming potential. The overall warming
effect of this cocktail of gases is often expressed in
terms of carbon dioxide equivalent - the amount of CO2
that would cause the same amount of warming.
Carbon footprint the amount of carbon emitted by an
individual or organisation in a given period of time, or
the amount of carbon emitted during the manufacture
of a product.
Carbon neutral A process where there is no net
release of CO2. For example, growing biomass takes
CO2 out of the atmosphere, while burning it releases
the gas again. The process would be carbon neutral if
the amount taken out and the amount released were
identical. A company or country can also achieve
carbon neutrality by means of carbon offsetting.
Carbon offsetting A way of compensating for
emissions of CO2 by participating in, or funding, efforts
to take CO2 out of the atmosphere. Offsetting often
involves paying another party, somewhere else, to
save emissions equivalent to those produced by your
activity.
Carbon sequestration the process of storing carbon
dioxide. This can happen naturally, as growing trees
and plants turn CO2 into biomass (wood, leaves, and
so on). It can also refer to the capture and storage of
CO2 produced by industry.
Climate change Changes in average weather
conditions that persist over multiple decades
affecting global or regional climate, as measured by
yardsticks such as average temperature and rainfall,

Agenda
Item 6
chorley.gov.uk/climatechange

or an alteration in frequency of extreme weather
conditions. This variation may be caused by both
natural processes and human activity. Global warming
is one aspect of climate change.
CO2 See carbon dioxide.
Deforestation The permanent removal of standing
forests that can lead to significant levels of carbon
dioxide emissions.
Fossil fuels Natural resources, such as coal, oil, and
natural gas, containing hydrocarbons. These fuels are
formed in the Earth over millions of years and produce
carbon dioxide when burnt.
Global average temperature The mean surface
temperature of the Earth measured from three main
sources: satellites, monthly readings from a network of
over 3,000 surface temperature observation stations
and sea surface temperature measurements taken
mainly from the fleet of merchant ships, naval ships and
data buoys.
Global energy budget the balance between the Earth’s
incoming and outgoing energy. The current global
climate system must adjust to rising greenhouse gas
levels and, in the very long term, the Earth must get rid
of energy at the same rate at which it receives energy
from the sun.
Global warming the steady rise in global average
temperature in recent decades, which experts believe
is largely caused by man-made greenhouse gas
emissions. The long-term trend continues upwards,
they suggest, even though the warmest year on record,
according to the UK’s Met Office, is 1998.
Global warming the observed increase in average
temperature near the Earth’s surface and in the lowest
layer of the atmosphere. In common usage, “global
warming” often refers to the warming that has occurred
as a result of increased emissions of greenhouse gases
from human activities. Global warming is a type of
climate change; it can also lead to other changes in
climate conditions, such as changes in precipitation
patterns.
Green Bus Stops Green bus stops are specifically
designed to alleviate the heat intensity and improve the
air quality at a bus stop. Features can include a layer
of plants which act as a shade for the bus stop’s roof
and will absorb the heat for evapotranspiration, thus
reducing the ambient temperature and the amount of
heat radiated to commuters.They provide a habitat
for many small pollinating creatures, and improving
biodiversity. They also provide visual amenity and can
include solar powered lighting.
Greenhouse gases that absorb heat in the atmosphere
near the Earth’s surface, preventing it from escaping
into space. If the atmospheric concentrations of these
gases rise, the average temperature of the lower

Climate Change Strategy / 2022 - 2024

Agenda Page 76

atmosphere will gradually increase, a phenomenon
known as the greenhouse effect. Greenhouse gases
include, for example, carbon dioxide, water vapor,
and methane.
Greenhouses effect the insulating effect of certain
gases in the atmosphere, which allow solar radiation
to warm the earth and then prevent some of the heat
from escaping.
Invasive species A non-native organism whose
introduction within a particular ecosystem causes or
is likely to cause economic or environmental harm,
or harm to human, animal, or plant health.
IPCC The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
is a scientific body established by the United Nations
Environment Programme and the World Meteorological
Organization. It reviews and assesses the most recent
scientific, technical, and socio-economic work relevant
to climate change, but does not carry out its own
research.
Kyoto Protocol A protocol attached to the UN
Framework Convention on Climate Change, which
sets legally binding commitments on greenhouse
gas emissions.
Methane Methane is the second most important
man-made greenhouse gas. Sources include both
the natural world (wetlands, termites, wildfires) and

Agenda Item 6

human activity (agriculture, waste dumps, leaks from coal
mining).
Mitigation Action that will reduce man-made climate
change. This includes action to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions or absorb greenhouse gases in the atmosphere.
Ozone Layer A colourless gas consisting of three atoms
of oxygen, readily reacting with many other substances.
Ozone in the upper atmosphere protects the Earth from
harmful levels of ultraviolet radiation from the Sun. In the
lower atmosphere ozone is an air pollutant with harmful
effects on human health.
Resilience A capability to anticipate, prepare for, respond
to, and recover from significant multi-hazard threats with
minimum damage to social well-being, the economy, and
the environment
Risk Risks are threats to life, health and safety, the
environment, economic well-being, and other things of
value. Risks are often evaluated in terms of how likely they
are to occur (probability) and the damages that would
result if they did happen (consequences).
Renewable energy Renewable energy is energy created
from sources that can be replenished in a short period
of time. The five renewable sources used most often are:
biomass (such as wood and biogas), the movement of
water, geothermal (heat from within the earth), wind,
and solar.

Resources
Chorley Council Carbon Footprint Report 2021
Add link when published
Chorley Council Clean Air Strategy
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/documents/s122081/Appendix%201%20for%20Clean%20Air%20Strategy.pdf
The 25-year environment plan
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-yearenvironment-plan.pdf
The Clean Growth Strategy Leading the way to a low carbon future
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/700496/cleangrowth-strategy-correction-april-2018.pdf
The Clean Air Strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-air-strategy-2019/clean-air-strategy-2019-executive-summary
The ten point plan for a green industrial revolution
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-ten-point-plan-for-a-green-industrial-revolution
The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
Reports — IPCC

chorley.gov.uk/climatechange

Agenda Page 77

Agenda Item 6

Carbon Footprint
Report
2019/20

Agenda Page 78

Agenda Item 6

Table of Contents
1.

Background ................................................................................................................ 3

2.

Methodology ............................................................................................................... 3
Baseline years ............................................................................................................... 3
Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (CO2e) ................................................................................ 3
Council Emissions Analysis ........................................................................................... 4
Borough emissions ........................................................................................................ 5

3.

Results ....................................................................................................................... 6
Council Emissions.......................................................................................................... 6
Borough Emissions ........................................................................................................ 7

Agenda Page 79

Agenda Item 6

1. Background
1.1.

Chorley Council declared a climate emergency in November 2019 and set the
ambitious goal of being net zero by 2030.

1.2.

Within the Climate Change Strategy 2022 a priority was set to monitor the
Councils and borough emissions on an annual basis to monitor progress towards
the 2030 goal and inform future work and actions.

1.3.

A carbon footprint is a measure of the greenhouse gas emissions released by an
individual, organisation or communities’ activities. The carbon footprint for the
Council as an organisation and the borough have been calculated.

1.4.

As a tier 2 authority, the council does not have the level of direct control over the
borough as it does over its own resources. However, analysis of borough
emissions allows for the identification of key emitting sectors that the council can
support to reduce carbon emissions.

2. Methodology
Baseline years
2.1.

The financial year 2019/20 was chosen as the baseline year as it was the most
readily available data set following the Councils declaration of a climate
emergency. The borough data is published with a two-year time lag therefore
2019 is the most recent dataset for the borough as a whole.

Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (CO2e)
2.2.

Each Greenhouse Gas varies in potency, which relates to their ability to trap heat
in the atmosphere. For example, methane is 80 times more potent than carbon
dioxide. Therefore, to standardise results, all the Greenhouse Gases are
collectively expressed under a single value termed the carbon dioxide equivalent
(CO2e).

2.3.

CO2e accounts for the seven main Greenhouse Gases that contribute to climate
change, as detailed in Table 1.

2.4.

CO2e conversion factors are set by the Department for Business, Energy &
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) on an annual basis.

Table 1: Details of the seven main Greenhouse Gases, expressed under Carbon Dioxide Equivalent (CO2e), and
the main sources for these emissions.

Greenhouse Gases
Carbon Dioxide (CO2)

Main Sources of Greenhouse Gases
- Coal, Oil and Gas (Fossil Fuels)
- Manufacturing

Agenda Page 80

Methane (CH4)
Nitrous Oxide (N2O)
Fluorinated Gases (F-Gases):
-Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs)
-Perfluorocarbons (PFCs)
-Sulphur Hexafluoride (SF6)
-Nitrogen Trifluoride (NF3)

Agenda Item 6

-

Cement Production
Deforestation
Livestock
Organic waste
Agriculture fertiliser
Waste management

-

Refrigeration
Aerosols

Council Emissions Analysis
Scope
2.5.

Greenhouse gas emissions are catagorised into three groups known as ‘Scopes’
which are the most internationally used tool, defined within the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol. Definitions and activities of each scope can be found in Table 2.

Table 2: Description of the emission sources included within the Councils carbon footprint within each scope

Greenhouse Gases Emissions Scopes
Direct emissions from sources owned or
Scope 1
controlled by the organisation

Indirect emissions (owned) produced by
consuming purchased energy from a utility
provider
Indirect emissions (not owned) produced
from Council activities but at sources not
owned or controlled by the Council

Scope 2

Scope 3

Activities
- Gas for heating
Council Buildings
- Fuel consumption
from council fleet
- Electricity for
building use
-

-

-

Staff business travel
Transmissions and
distribution losses
within the supply
chain
Well to Tank
emissions during
energy production
Waste disposal

Missing data
2.6.

The Council has worked to collect all available to ensure the Council carbon
footprint is accurate and well informed. With that being said some data is missing
or has been excluded, details of each can be found below in Table 3.

2.7.

It is unlikely that this missing and excluded data is likely to have a large impact on
the overall carbon footprint.

Table 3: Missing data for the 2019/20 carbon footprint calculations

Missing Data
Scope 1 2019 Annual Fleet Miles

Outcome
An annual average was

Agenda Page 81

Assets which the Council own but are not in
charge of electricity or gas
Recycling data for a number of assets not held

Scope 3

Procurement and material use
Business use of public transport

Agenda Item 6

calculated with the fleet
miles of one month for
calculations
Excluded due to lack of
control over sources
Excluded due to lack of
figures, overall waste and
recycling emissions still
included
Excluded due to lack of
data
Excluded due to lack of
data

Conversion factors
2.8.

The methodology behind the calculation of GHG emissions is through the
application of documented and approved GHG emission conversion factors.
These factors are calculated ratios which relate emissions to a proxy measure of
activity from an emissions source.

2.9.

Further detail on the methodology and emissions factors can be found at;
Government conversion factors for company reporting of greenhouse gas
emissions - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

2.10.

The data of emission source used, also known as activity data, is multiplied by
the relevant emission factor to calculate CO2e equivalent emissions
CO2e= activity data x emission conversion factor

2.11.

Emission factors for the 2019 period can be found on;
Greenhouse gas reporting: conversion factors 2019 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Borough emissions
Data Source
2.12.

Each year, BEIS produce estimates of carbon dioxide emissions at a local
authority and regional level. These statistics provide the most reliable and
consistent breakdown of CO2 emissions across the country, using nationally
available data sets.

2.13.

The data provided covers estimated emissions for the period between 2005 and
2019. This is due to a two-year time lag between publishing figures.

Agenda Page 82

2.14.

Agenda Item 6

The raw data is published on the GOV.UK website and is accessible via the
following link: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-andregional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019

Sub sectors
2.15.

The emissions sources for each borough are split across three main end-user
sectors: Industry and Commercial, Domestic and Transport. These are further
broken down to individual subsectors, as detailed in Table 4 below.

Table 4: Main sectors and subsectors representing emission sources across the borough.

Industrial and
Commercial
- Electricity
- Gas
- Large Industrial
Installations
- Other Fuels
- Agriculture

2.16.

Domestic

Transport

- Electricity
- Gas
- Other Fuels

- A Roads
- Minor Roads
- Other

An additional sector is Land Use, Land Use Change and Forestry (LULUCF).
This is omitted from the main dataset, as BEIS do not consider this sector to be
within the scope of local authorities.

3. Results
Council Emissions
3.1.

Overall, the total Council CO2e emissions for 2019/20 was 1,662,632 kg CO2e.

3.2.

The distribution of emissions across each activity and subsequent scope is
shown in Figure 1 and Table 5. The three most significant sources of emissions
were:
a. Mains Gas, 64% of total emissions (1,079,572 kg Co2e)
b. Mains Electricity, 31% of total emissions (529,004 kg CO2e)
c. Fleet Transport, 2% of total emissions (37,205 kg CO2e)

Figure 1: Chorley Council source emissions (CO2e) for 2019/20

Agenda Item 6

Agenda Page 83

Sources CO2e Emissions for 2019/20
1,200,000.00
1,079,572.34
1,000,000.00

Kg CO2e

800,000.00

600,000.00

529,004.58

400,000.00

200,000.00
2.63

3.36

1.11

WTT Electricity

WTT - Gas

Electricity T&D

37,205.34

16,843.26

27,088.08

Fleet
Transport

Business
transport

Waste
Disposal

0.00
Mains
Electricity

Mains Gas

Table 5: Proportion of Chorley Council emissions per scope

Scope
Scope 1
Scope 2
Scope 3

Proportion of
emissions
67% (1,116,777 kg
CO2e)
32% (529,004 kg
CO2e)
2% (43938 kg CO2e)

Borough Emissions
3.3.

The total fuel (gas, electricity, coal, biowaste, petrol, diesel) used within the
borough for 2019 was 241 kt CO2 of which transport was the largest contributing
sector. Shown in Figure 2.

Agenda Page 84

Agenda Item 6

Figure 2: Chorley Borough total fuel use and sector contribution between 2005 and 2019
Date Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-national-statistics-2005-to-2019

300.0

Volume of fuel (ktoe)

250.0

200.0

150.0

100.0

50.0

0.0
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Year
Domestic: All Fuels

Transport: All Fuels

Industrial and Commercial: All Fuels

Total: All Fuels

3.4.

Overall estimated CO2 emissions for the Chorley borough in 2019 was 651.9 kt
CO2 emissions. The emissions between 2005 and 2019 have been gradually
decreasing.

3.5.

With an estimated 2019 population of 118,600 which equates to 5.5 t CO2 per
capita.

Figure 3: Chorley borough CO2 emissions between 2005 and 2019
Date Source: https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/uk-local-authority-and-regional-carbon-dioxide-emissions-nationalstatistics-2005-to-2019

Agenda Page 85

Agenda Item 6

1,000.0
900.0
800.0
700.0

KtCO2

600.0
500.0
400.0
300.0
200.0
100.0
0.0
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

4. Moving Forward
4.1.

This dataset represents the baseline figures for comparison moving forward and
will be used to inform actions within Climate Change strategy updates and
progression of decarbonisation activities.

4.2.

Further progressions and actions can be made once the baseline dataset is
compared against recent carbon footprints.

4.3.

The carbon footprint will be monitored annually with future and update reports will
be produced moving forward

The Council
4.4. With gas and electricity accounting for over two thirds of the Councils emissions,
the decarbonisation of the assets is essential. The Council will determine the
feasibility and carbon reduction of adding carbon reducing measures to the main
Council assets.

4.5.

The third highest emission source was the fleets transportation. This data source
was averaged due to the lack of a full annual set, measures will be taken so that
a more accurate dataset can be collected in 2022. The Council will continue to
progressively electrify the fleet as a long-term action within the climate change
programme.

The Borough
4.6.

Whilst it is clear that overall emissions from the borough are reducing work within
the community and which businesses can be taken to aid in the lowering of
emissions as the borough.

Agenda Page 86

Agenda Item 6

4.7.

Chorley borough has a large proportion of through traffic due to major roads and
motorways crossing through the borough. As a local authority no action can be
enforced to lower through traffic emissions however work can be taken to support
sustainable transport for the residents which is reflected within the strategy.

4.8.

Work will continue to be taken to work with and support the community to lower
the emissions from the borough.

Integrated Impact Assessment

What does the service, policy, strategy or project
do?

This strategy provides the background, visions, aims
and proposed actions for the Councils Climate Change
Programme for the next 2 years. This strategy will be
reviewed bi-annually

Who is it intended to benefit and how?

The strategy affects all individuals living and working in
the borough and also those visiting the local area.

Officer responsible for completing the assessment

Sally Green

Date of Assessment

Date of Review

11/11/2021

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

Agenda Item 6

Climate Change Strategy (CC Strategy)

Agenda Page 87

Name of the service, policy, strategy or project
being assessed

11/11/2021

1

Equality Impact Assessment

Yes

1. Have consultations with relevant
groups, organisations or individuals
indicated that this particular activity
will create problems which are
specific to them?

No

Evidence

X

The climate change programme within the CC
Strategy was originally developed by members at
Overview and Scrutiny Task Group. The Strategy
considers the effects of climate change at a
Chorley specific level ie flooding, job creation.
Specific actions include the creation of
businesses and resident networking groups and
to support community run groups

Further action required
The Strategy will go out to public
consultation upon approval to consult at
Executive Cabinet to inform the
implementation of priorities

What potential impact does this activity make to:

P

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

NI

X

X

Evidence

Further action required

The CC Strategy will have no specific impact on
customers with different ages. In terms of projects
or performance measures. However, community
is a strategic theme of the strategy ensuring
residents are involved in improving their local
area and equality of access for all and will
therefore have a positive general impact to this
community.
The CC strategy has a technical level to allow it
to be read to a range of age groups. Specific
actions which promote different work to different
age groups include, visitations to schools,
community training days, and supporting a range
of community groups

No further action required.

The CC Strategy will have no specific impact on
those with a disability in terms of projects or
performance measures. However, community is a
strategic theme of the strategy ensuring residents
are involved in improving their local area and
equality of access for all and will therefore have a
positive general impact to this community.

No further action required.

Agenda Item 6

2. Equality of opportunity amongst with
or without a physical or mental
disability (Disability)

U

Agenda Page 88

1. Equality of opportunity amongst
customers of different ages (Age)

N

2

3. Equality of opportunity amongst
customers of different gender
backgrounds (Gender Reassignment)

4. Equality of opportunity amongst
customers who are pregnant or
parents (Pregnancy and Maternity)

7. Equality of opportunity amongst
customers that live in different parts
of Chorley (Rurality)
Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

X

The CC Strategy will have no specific impact on
those who are pregnant or parents in terms of
projects or performance measures. However,
community is a strategic theme of the strategy
ensuring residents are involved in improving their
local area and equality of access for all and will
therefore have a positive general impact to this
community.

No further action required.

X

The CC Strategy will have no specific impact on
those of different racial backgrounds in terms of
projects or performance measures. However,
community is a strategic theme of the strategy
ensuring residents are involved in improving their
local area and equality of access for all and will
therefore have a positive general impact to this
community.

No further action required.

X

The CC Strategy will have no specific impact on
those of different racial backgrounds in terms of
projects or performance measures. However,
community is a strategic theme of the strategy
ensuring residents are involved in improving their
local area and equality of access for all and will
therefore have a positive general impact to this
community.

No further action required.

X

The CC Strategy considers the different climate
change effects experienced in different areas of
Chorley such as Town centre pollution, rural
flooding.

No further action required.

Agenda Item 6

6. Equality of opportunity amongst
customers of different religions
(Religion or Belief)

No further action required.

Agenda Page 89

5. Equality of opportunity amongst
customer groups of different racial
backgrounds (Race)

X

The CC Strategy will have no specific impact on
those with of different gender backgrounds in
terms of projects or performance measures.
However, community is a strategic theme of the
strategy ensuring residents are involved in
improving their local area and equality of access
for all and will therefore have a positive general
impact to this community.

3

Overall the cc strategy considers the different
environments within Chorley but the actions
within the programme work to improve Chorley as
a whole including enhanced public transport,
cycle and walking paths, housing stock and
community projects which have an equal benefit
to all residents

8. Equality of opportunity amongst male
and female customers (Sex)

X

The Strategy will have no specific impact on
those with different sexual orientation in terms of
projects or performance measures. However,
community is a strategic theme of the strategy
ensuring residents are involved in improving their
local area and equality of access for all and will
therefore have a positive general impact to this
community.

No further action required.

X

The Strategy will have no specific impact on
those who are married or in a civil partnership in
terms of projects or performance measures.
However, community is a strategic theme of the
strategy ensuring residents are involved in
improving their local area and equality of access
for all and will therefore have a positive general
impact to this community.

No further action required.

Health Impact Assessment

P

N

U

NI

Evidence

Further action required

What potential impact does this activity make upon:
1. Promoting healthy lifestyles for Chorley residents. For
the latest Health Observatory information please see the
data on this link
Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

X

A key vision of the Climate
Change Strategy is to
improve the borough’s

No further action required.
4

Agenda Item 6

10. Equality of opportunity amongst
customers who are married or in a
civil partnership (Marriage and Civil
partnerships)*

No further action required.

Agenda Page 90

9. Equality of opportunity amongst
customers of different sexual
orientations (Sexual Orientation)

X

The CC Strategy will have no specific impact on
those with different sexes in terms of projects or
performance measures. However, community is a
strategic theme of the strategy ensuring residents
are involved in improving their local area and
equality of access for all and will therefore have a
positive general impact to this community.

http://www.apho.org.uk/resource/item.aspx?RID=126958

Agenda Page 91

environment and contribute to
the Council’s evolving
commitment to developing a
strong and environmentally
friendly economy for future
generations.
The overall health benefits of
mitigating the effects of
climate change will support
this. The CC strategy notes
the co benefits of air quality,
sustainable transport and
nature has for promoting and
allowing healthy lifestyles for
Chorley residents.
Actions which will further
encourage it include air
quality monitoring, increased
number of electric vehicles of
petrol/diesel, maintaining and
creating walking and cycle
paths

X

Agenda Item 6

2. Enabling residents to Start Well (pre-birth – 19) Possible
issues to consider are;
 Promoting healthy pregnancy
 Reducing infant mortality
 Reducing childhood obesity
 Supporting children with long term conditions
 Supporting vulnerable families and children

A key vision of the Climate
Change Strategy is to
improve the borough’s
environment and contribute to
the Council’s evolving
commitment to developing a
strong and environmentally
No further action required.
friendly economy for future
generations.
The overall health benefits of
mitigating the effects of
climate change will support
this. The CC strategy notes

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

5

the co benefits of air quality,
sustainable transport and
nature has for promoting and
allowing residents a healthier
lifestyle to Start Well.
Actions which will further
benefit it include air quality
monitoring, increased number
of electric vehicles of
petrol/diesel, maintaining and
creating walking and cycle
paths, business support and
community support

3. Enabling residents to Live well (16 -75 years) Possible
issues to consider are;


X

The overall health benefits of
mitigating the effects of
climate change will support
this. The CC strategy notes
the co benefits of air quality,
sustainable transport and
nature has for promoting and
allowing residents a healthier
lifestyle to Live well.

No further action required.

Agenda Item 6





Promoting healthy settings, healthy workforce and
economic development
Promoting mental wellbeing and healthy lifestyles
Reducing avoidable deaths
Improving outcomes for people with learning disabilities

Agenda Page 92

A key vision of the Climate
Change Strategy is to
improve the borough’s
environment and contribute to
the Council’s evolving
commitment to developing a
strong and environmentally
friendly economy for future
generations.

Actions which will further
benefit it include air quality
Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

6

monitoring, increased number
of electric vehicles of
petrol/diesel, maintaining and
creating walking and cycle
paths, business support and
community support

4. Enabling residents to Age Well (over 65 years). Possible
issues to consider are;
 Promoting independence
 Reducing social isolation
 Managing long term conditions and dementia
 Reducing emergency admissions and direct admissions
to residential care settings
 Supporting carers and families

X

The overall health benefits of
mitigating the effects of
climate change will support
this. The CC strategy notes
the co benefits of air quality,
sustainable transport and
nature has for promoting and
allowing residents a healthier
lifestyle to Age well.

Agenda Page 93

A key vision of the Climate
Change Strategy is to
improve the borough’s
environment and contribute to
the Council’s evolving
commitment to developing a
strong and environmentally
friendly economy for future
generations.

No further action required.

Agenda Item 6

Actions which will further
benefit it include air quality
monitoring, increased number
of electric vehicles of
petrol/diesel, maintaining and
creating walking and cycle
paths, business support and
community support

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

7

Reputational Impact Assessment

P

N

U

NI

Evidence

Further action required

What potential impact does this activity make upon:
1. Chorley Council’s reputation. Possible issues to
consider are;
Proving to local residents that we provide value for
money



Informing and engaging with local residents



Building trust and confidence in Chorley Council



Improving customer satisfaction with council
services



Chorley Council’s role as a community leader

X

X

Agenda Item 6

2. Our ability to deliver the Corporate Strategy. Issues to
consider are;
 A council that consults and engages with residents
 An ambitious council that continually strives to
improve

A key vision of the Climate
Change Strategy is to
improve the borough’s
environment and contribute to
the Council’s evolving
commitment to developing a
strong and environmentally
friendly economy for future
generations.

No further action required.

Agenda Page 94



The CC Strategy is a public
facing document and outlines
the Council’s Climate change
visions, aims, and actions
over the next 2 years. It is our
key document that
demonstrates our
commitment as a community
leader in mitigating climate
change and aims to foster
engagement, encourage
community support with and
showcase the Council’s
efforts and activities. This will
have positive ramifications on
the Council’s reputation.

No further action required.

The overriding goal of the CC
strategy is to be net zero by
2030 this target is 20 years
ahead of the governments
own target, which ties directly
into the corporate strategy,
Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

8

Reputational Impact Assessment

P

N

U

NI

Evidence

Further action required

whilst the Council work to
improve the environment
ahead of government set
targets

Sustainability Impact Assessment

P

N

U

NI

Evidence

Further action required

What potential impact does this activity make upon:

1. The effective protection of Chorley’s environment. Possible
issues to consider are;


Limiting waste generation & encouraging recycling



Limiting factors that contribute to climate change



Protection of and improving access to the natural
environment

The CC strategy specifically
No further action required.
seeks to improve and protect
Chorley’s environment with
specific strategic themes
relating to each of the key area
impacted by climate change
including nature and
biodiversity, waste and
recycling and planning policy.

9

Agenda Item 6

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

P

Agenda Page 95

This strategy is the key
document for the Council
relating to the work and
actions for the mitigation of
climate change and the
protection of the environment.

Sustainability Impact Assessment

P

N

U

NI

Evidence

Further action required

This strategy is the key
document for the Council
relating to the work and
actions for the mitigation of
climate change and the
protection of the environment.
2. Prudent usage of natural resources. Possible issues to
consider are;


Limiting use of non-sustainable energy, water, minerals
and materials



Reducing the need to travel and encouraging walking,
cycling and low carbon modes of travel

Opportunities for education and information



Provision of appropriate and sustainable housing



Reduced fear of crime and community safety



Access to cultural and leisure facilities



Encouraging engagement and supporting volunteering

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

No further action required.

10

Agenda Item 6



Two strategic theme within the
CC strategy are community
and communication. With the
social progress of Chorley in a
sustainable way being a key
priority which runs throughout
the strategy
Specific actions include;
community and school
education, lobby government
for sustainable housing policy,
formation of business and
community networking groups

Agenda Page 96

3. Social progress amongst all of Chorley’s communities.
Possible issues to consider are;

P

The CC strategy specifically
seeks to improve and protect
No further action required.
Chorley’s environment with
specific strategic themes
relating to each of the key area
impacted by climate change
including nature and
biodiversity, waste and
recycling, sustainable
transport and energy.

Sustainability Impact Assessment

P

N

U



Supporting local business by procuring goods and
services locally



Strengthening links with public, private and third sector
partners

Further action required

This strategy discusses the cobenefits climate mitigation has
for the community including
job creation, local businesses
boosting and healthy lifestyles.
The action notes numerous
community based actions
which support a thriving
community including business
support, business networking,
and a resident hand book of
local businesses

Agenda Page 97

Supporting better quality jobs and developing the skills
of local residents

Evidence
A key vision of the Climate
Change Strategy is to improve
the borough’s environment
and contribute to the Council’s
evolving commitment to
developing a strong and
environmentally friendly
economy for future
generations.

4. A vibrant local economy in Chorley. Possible issues to
consider are;


NI

Integrated Impact Assessment Action Plan
If any further actions were identified through the Integrated Impact Assessment then these should be listed in the table below. These
should be added to the relevant business/service plan to ensure that any actions are carried out.
Actions needed following Integrated Impact
Assessment

Start Date
December 2021

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

End Date
February 2022

Lead Officer
Sally Green
11

Agenda Item 6

* this equality strand is covered by the Public Sector Equality Duty in respect of which the s.149 requires only that due regard be paid to
the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment or victimisation or other conduct which is prohibited by the Act.

Actions needed following Integrated Impact
Assessment

Start Date

End Date

Lead Officer

Conduct public consultation

Refresh the Integrated Impact Assessment

February 2022

March 2022

Sally Green

Review the progression of actions (stipulated to be biannually)

January 2024

April 2024

TBC

Agenda Page 98

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

Agenda Item 6

4

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

Integrated Impact Assessment Toolkit

12

Agenda Page 99

Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 109

Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 119

Agenda Item 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

